


































































































































































NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

5. Derivative Financial Instruments 

(A) Currency derivatives -- , 
_Forwards 

Ctlrrency Fu tUTes 
-- Currency swaps 

'--Notionar-- --Fi'll'Va:llle' 'Fafr''Viiiui:t1":''Notfoii'al ; Fair Value· Notional 
amo ts." ':.LiabiH 'e.') am nts·· iLiah-iH 'es:-

:"f EUR8.35 

U5D4.11 

U5D 27.16 79.27' U5D26.41 
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Fair Value - Fair Value M 

Liahilities 

503.60 

22.56: 

14.14 

U5D22.9 

EUR8.71 

247.40 

90.:38 • EUR11.13 . . 82.00 EURM4 .. 4.12 . 
-Total {AY-

Interest Rate,Swap!>" 
Total 

Total derivatives 
(A)+(B). 

Included In above are 
derivatives held for hedging 
and risk management purposes 
as follows: 

(A) Fair value hedging: 

- h).terest.rate derivative 

(B) Cash flow hedging: 

Currency derivative 

S:ub_tot<!.l. HH 
Tot.! (A+B) 

t 
337.79 

. ,0; 

U5D22.9 247.40 

EURB.7? 90.38 

,337,79 

--':f- 337.79 ';, 

161.27 507.72 36.70 

INR 250 0.Q7 
,+--

0.07 . 161.27 507.79 36.70 

INR250 0:07 
0.07 

U5D29 79.27 EURB.35 22.56 
U5Dn 82.od U5D4.11' 

U5D26.41 503.60 

. EUR6.85 4,12 
161.27 • 507.72, 36.70 

'16'£:27 .36:70 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

6.Trade Receivables 
TRs.· inmilliQit' 

As at March 31,; As at March 31, As at April 01, 
2019 2018 2017 

Trade Receivables 
(a) Secured, considered good .- 12.14 21.34 
(b) Unsecured considered good 247.43 1,936.09 1,104.04 
(c) Doubtful 1,784.88 . -
Less: Credit impaired assets (1784.88) - ;..; 

Total 247.43. ; 1,948:23 1,125.38 

All trade receivable are at amortised cost 



456 

J ..... JJFS .................................•.................... '" - , 

, ' .. ~;: .~'- - - .,--:.- ,'- " 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR,ENDED MARCH 31,2019 

7. Loans 

:- Secured 
.:it Term Loans 
Total 

' .• Unsecured 
(i) Term Loans 

i liil. Loans and .. advances to empjovees 
Total 

Less:' ImDairmenf!oss'"llowance 
Nettotal 

All loans are at amortised cost 

* 

AU loans are within India to related parties 

As atMarch 
2019 

4829732 
M;291:32 

61,883.68 
4.91 

91,,888.59 

110,185.911 
91730.24'1 
12455.671 

As at March 
2018 

37,544.54. 
3.7,544.54 .. 

25,637.43 
5.64 

25,643.07. 

63,187.60 
2,301.23 

.60 886.37. 

~; inl3'lil!ig).i) 
As at April 2017 

39228.99· 
39,228.99 

3,947.36 
7.62 

3,954.98 

43183.97 
2225.36 

40958 .. 61: 

* Above balance include due from erstwhile directors and officers of the Company Rs. 0.17 million 
(2018- Rs. 0.24 million, 2017-Rs. 0.30 million). 

Terms loans includes Rs 24,048 million to IL&FS Transportation Networks Ltd and Rs 12,078 
million to IL&FS Energy Development Company Ltd given during FY 2018-19. Refer note 44 for 
Related party disclosure 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

8. Investments 

Ltd 
Ltd 

and Construction Company Ltd 

Devdopmcnt CompilllY Ltd 18 (i) 
ilml Bagbcra Drinking Water Supply Projects Ltd 

Iv) 

Tccimology Services Ltd (i) (vii) 

Company Ltd (0 

Infrastructure and Services Ltd (i) 

Ltd 

(iv) 

• CompililY Ltd W 

Water Ltd (j) 
Ltd 

(i) 

(i) (v) 

Ltd 

Road DcvC>!opmc!n1 Company Ltd 18 ro 
Projects Implcmcntnlion Company Ltd 18 (i) 

Ltd (i) (iii) 

(vi) 
(i) 

(viii) 

(i) 

45.50 

682.94 

-

74.00 

0.25 

c· 

45.00' 

: .. 
':;," 

'. 
969.70 

--~-

lA93.13~ 

.' 

74.00 
170.50 

i( 
38.60 

"" 

250.00 
446.23 
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682.94 
13,632.41 

;; 

2,076.48 

;;' 
45.50 

728.30 72830 

1,175.64 1,175/>'1 

46,740.00 

2,925.52 

11,424,16 

286.10 

5,646.45 

969.70 
23.75 

675,00 

95.00 

0.23 

74.00 
170.50 

19.66 
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I
::~:CC:CCCC.$CCCC:CCC 

, C 

" .-; ,," , 

j / ,>,:-.,-; /" ,"r :. CCC :c cc cccc. C c... .ccc. cccccc.cc C 

Particulars Notes 
As at 3fst As'at'31sf As at 1st 

--Man::h., _:tOJ~ 

'c 

7 
.c: -Investiri~'ti:fitnoirit 'verihire -e-Q:l:lihi instrument (at cost} 
Unquoted 
Bihur e·Govemanc<! Services & Teclu\olop,ies Ltd 0.50 0.50 0.50 
,less: Impairment (0.50) 

c, 

9uiarat International Finance Toc*City COmpilflY Ltd 327.09 327.09;, 327,09 
Haldia Inte),;rated Development A,g.cncy Ltd 15.10 15;lO, 15.10 
Jhdrklialld E-Govcmance Solutions & Services Ltd 0.50 0.50 0.50 
Less; Impaimlent (0.50) Hi (0.50) "-,,-, (O.sO) · 
Ktlmataka Entt'rprises Solutions Ltd -'" .. :- 0.50 
Less: Impairment (0$0) c. 

Odishu e-Govemnnce Services Ltd 0.50 0.50; 0.50 
Less: Impairment (050) ,..-: 
Road Infrastructure Development Company of Rajasthan Ltd 18 (1) 1,625.00 1,625.00 V)25-,OO 

TOTAL (C) . , 1,~67.19._ 1,968.19- 1~968.19 

D. Investment in Units v FVTPL 
IL&FS Initilstrocture lncubiltion Trust~ Class A (ix) 10.55 , 10.55 10.55 
Less: Impairment (10;55) 
IL&FS Inir,lstructure hlcubalion Trust· Clilss B-1 Scheme R;'Iilway 5,103.59 5,103.59 5,103.59 
Metro • 
Less: impairment __ (5,103.59, 

TOTAL (D) · I 5,114.14 - ·-5.114,.14 
E. investment in Debentures - Cost 
Non Convertible Debentures 
Subsidiaries 
West Gujafilt E)(pn!SSwil\' lid 63.00, 72.00 108.00 
Others 
Iridium India Telecom Ltd (i)(ii) 0.00 0.00 0_00 

TOTAL (E)_i 63.0(1' 1-2,00 108.00 

F. Investment in Debentures - Cost 
IL&FS Energy Development Compunv Ltd 2,470.00 -,.,., 2,470.00 2,470,00 
ll.'ss:lmpairment (2,470.00) 
IL&FS T~mil N<1.du Power Company Lid 5,000.00 ,~ 5,000.00 5,000.00 
less:Impairment (S,DDO.OO) 

TOTAL (F) , 7,.470.00 --],470.,00, 

G. Investment in Debentures - FVTPL 
Fully Convertible Debentures 
Subsidiaries 
lL&FS P,uadip Refinery Wilter Ltd 800.00 800.00 1,000.00 
lL&FS Township & Urbnn Assets Lid 7,650.00 , 4,770.QO 4,770.00 
less:lmpnirment (7,650.00) 
Porto Novo Maritime Umitcd 1.200.00 · 1,200.00 1.900.00 
less:lmpairment (1,200.00) 
lL&F5 Maritime Infrastructure Company Ltd 5,850.00 ~~ 3,850.00 · 
iess:lmpairment (5,850.00) 

Optionally Convertible Debenture 
Subsidiaries 
lL&fS Township & Urban Assets Ltd 1,500.00 i 1,50Q~PO 1,500.00 
Less:lmpairment (1,500.00) 
Oth(!r5 
Iridium India Telecom Ltd '<; 0.01 0.01 

Redeemable CumuJil!illc Preference share (Cost) 
H,&FSTechnolo~ies Ltd 10Q,00 

TOTAL (G) 800:00-. --
.~- ~ _l2..120)11 9,270.011 

Total Investments (A+B+C+D+E+F+G) IWll,06· 121,,288,44 117,576.57 i 
' .. , 

"" · ; Gra,ml '[otal 8,~1.06': 121288.44 1nS76.57 
--,--._,----



459 

All Investment are in India except IL&FS Global Pte Limited 

u Other notes 

(i) Non-Disposal Undertaking (NDU) provided by the Company to the third party lenders / investors 

(il) Represents cost at Re. 1 

(Ill) The Company had entered into Call Option Agreements for sale of entire equity shares to a Trust for which it has received 95% of option 
premium in the previous year, which has been shown under "Other Financial Liabilities" 

(iv) The Company has made investment in foreign currency. Given the size of investment and level of operations, the Company has not 
elltered into hedging of the said investments 

(v) The Company has received 20,000,000 equity shares of IL&FS Township & Urban Assets Ltd of Rs 10 each against its investment in 
nOCL Ltd as per the Scheme of Merger approved by, Hon'ble Bombay High Court and Hon'ble Delhi Hi?;h Court 

(vi) Includes 34,999,991 shares pledged with Senior Lenders of New Tirupur Area Development Corporation Limited 

(vii) IL&FS Education & Technology Services Ltd is held for sale, however disclosure required by IndAS 105 are not available with company. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

9. Other Financial Assets (E{' '®"\ .' .. s.'mID' on 

As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01, 
2019 2018 2017 

Advance 'towards Investments ~~-' 4,880.00 983.00 
Deposits. 125.43, 132.96 140.46 
Interest and Dividend Accrued 5.87j 6,017.42 4,048.85 
Receivable from Sale of Securities ',;'':: - 369.90 
Deferred Receivables 35.00 707.17 672.17 
Other Financial Assets 220.09 86.61 15222 

Total 386.39. 11,824.16 6,366.60 

Other financial assets for the current year is net of impairement losses amounting to Rs. 287 million 
(FY 2018: Nil, FY 2017: Nil) 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

;tiil':Cill'teri'ttax assets and liabilities 

qt1~~ri,( tax asse-ts(Net "of.Pi(j\f.lsioiiV 
A~V~T1.lx ' 
"l'wAifGr¢clH Entitl~ment 
Total 

Current tax liabilities 
Income--tax::P:aya,ble 
Total 

10.2 Deferred tax balances 

..... 

As at March 31~ As at March 31, 
2019 2018 

7,746.95 7,571.78 
;,;; -

'1;746.95'; .. 7;571;78 

, 41.38 
--.--~ 

4t::iS 

at March 31, -As at March 31, 
2019 2018 

As at April 01, 
2017 

4,268.96 
335.90 

4604.86 

544.74 
544.74 

As at April 01, 
2017 

Since the Company has operating the- year, no on 
the same premise, the Company has not recognised deferred tax asset, since there is no certainty that there would be future taxable profit 
against which losses can be utilised. The amount of deferred tax assets has been restricted to amount of deferred tax liability.Components 
of deferred taxes have not been presented as per schedule III in view of deferred tax assets being fully written off in the year ended march 
2019. 

10.3 Tax relating to earlier years: 
(a) The Holding Company had created provision for tax in earlier years for disallowances of expenses under section 14A of Income Tax 
Act, 1961 based on the conservative estimates. Considering subsequent judicial pronouncements and orders of the appellate authorities 
in the Company1s own case in the matter, the Management has reassessed the requirements of tax provisions of earlier years in respect of 
Section 14A disallowance. Based on such assessment, the Holding Company has written back provision for tax of earlier years 
amounting to Rs. 1,858.40 11m through the Statement of Profit and Loss U1 the Previous year. 

b) During the earlier financial years, the Holding Company had not considered deduction of lease equalization adjustment on lease 
h'ansactions in view of uncertainty and litigation. Pursuant to the favourable decision by the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India for 
allowability of Lease Equnlisation adjustments debited to the Statement of Profit & Loss and also based on the legal view obtained for the 
applicability of the said Supreme Court decisio11 to the facts of the Holding Company, it has reviewed the pOSition and has written back 
the provision for tax amounting to Rs. 1,750.00 Inn in the Previous year 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

10.3 Income Tax Disclosure 

The maior components of income tax expense for the years ended 31st March, 2019 and 31st March, 2018 are: 

Income Tax Recognition 
tli,,; in.milllol;)j 

Particulars .- _. Year ended '-sisr- Year -ended 31st 
..•.. .. .March 2019 March. 2018 

Current'Tax 
In respect of the current year " 1,259.00 
In respect of prior years (3,608.40) 
Deferred Tax ~ 

In respect of the current year 617.39 (25.93) 
Tax recognised in OCI .-,~"'--- (3.85) 
Total Income tax expense recognised in the current year relating to 617.59 (2,379.18) 
icontinuiu!!_onerations- .. 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

11. 

Break up of investment property 

Corporate Office 
Others 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at beginning of year 
Additions 
Disposals 

Balance at end of year 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

.Balance at beginning of year 
Additions 

-Disposals 

Balance at end of year 

Carrying amount 

Balance at beginning of year 
Additions 
Disposals 
Depreciation expense 

Balal},~~, at ,,~,r:tq of :v;e~_L. ____ 

i 

.,---

As at 
March 31, 2019 

As at 
March 31,2019 

8,694.50' 
',-; 

8,694.50 

211.63 . 
192.24 

'''"" 

403:87( 

8,482.87 
' .. 
0_-

- - ., .. - ....... .192.24 
8,290•63 .. ' 

As at 
March 31, 2018 

As at 
March 31, 2018 

8,694.50 

-
-

8,694.50 

, 
211.63 

-" 

211.63 

8,694.50 
., 
-

211.63 ... 
.848.2 .. 87 .. 
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As at 
April 01, 2017 

5,332.37 
864.81 

As at 
April 1, 2017 

8,694.50 
-
-

. 8,694.50 

-
-
-
-

8,694.50 

-

-8,694.50 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2019 

12, Property, Plant and Equipment 
Us in million 

GROSS BLOCK (at costj revalued) 
ACCUMULATED DEl'HECIATIUN f 

NET BLOCK ____ AMORTISATION 
.. -----~ ""A'ifat ' 'Additions ~Dedudi6ns' '" at " 'As'af -.-.-~ ." -- Foi--- Dedu'ctlons - As'at Asat 

Item Ol-Apr-1S For the For the 31~Mar~19 Ol-Apr-1S the For the 31~Mar~19 31·Mar·19 
_ Year Year Year Year 

Leasehold Land 45.32 45:32 0.43 0,80' . .;;,. 1,23 44,09 

Premises (Refer foot note 1,2 &3),: 366.15' 366.15 11.05 8,64 . 19.69 346.46 

Plant & Machinery 64.73 4.29 0,04 68.98 6.n 6.13 1 0.04 12.81 56.17 

Furniture and Fixtures 36,00 0,13 8.81 27.32 10.90 6.51 ' 4.46 12.95 14.37 

Vehicles 60.63 ''''' 7.09 53.54 13.89 16.88 3.03: 27.74 25.80 

Office Equipmcrlts 14.16 3,51 5.51 12.16 4.61 4.95 5.43 : 4.13 8.03 
Data Processing Equipments 16.66 1.66 2.40 15.92 8.05 6.59 2.39 12.25 3.67 

Electricals Installation 28.20 0.42 2.69 25.92 0.09 6.96 2.43 4.62 21.30 

Improvement to Lensed 
54.99 0.10 10.04 45.05 23,04 11.74 2.55" 32.23 12.82 

Property,. 

TOTAL 686.84 10.10 36.58 . 660,36,: ·78.78.- .69.2Q .. 20.33.:~ . 127.65· . 532.71 
.. _-

GROSS BLOCK (" w><, ,;.;:,':' 'HvNj 
iNETBLOCK 

A", As" As a' Fo, Asa' ". As .. 
Item 01-Apr-17 For the th' 31-Mar-1S 01-Apr~17 31~Marv18 31vMar~18 

Year . Yea< Y''' . y", 
I Land 45,32 . , 45,32 , .. 0.43 .j 0,43' 44.89' 

,(R"f" foot note 1,2 &3;' 366.15 . 0 366,15 , 11.05 -:..: 11.05 355.111 

P!nnt & Machinery 61.50 3,23 64,73 " ,:~~i 6,72, 58.01 
and Fixtures 39.25 0.02 

:~~ 36,00" . 3.22' 10.90 25.10 
Ve 0.04 61.60 60,63\ , 14.90 1.D1, 13.89 46.74 

~;fi" 14.05 0.78 ~;~ 14.16" - 5.27 0.66', 4.61 9.55 
Equipments 1559 2.06 16,66 - 8.95 0.90. S.OS 8.61 

Installation 40.00 0.89 12,69 28.20 12.56 12.47 0.09 28.11 

,to L",,,d 54,69 0,30 " 54.99 -;.; _",,04' ... ,~. 23,0' 31.95 
TOTAL 636,59 68,88 18,63 686,84\' , 97,041 18,26 78,78 608.06 

Footnotes: 

(1) !ncludes Premises given on Operating Lease 

(2) In respect of one leased premise taken on lease from a Government Authority, though !:he lease agreement is pending,. the asset has been capitalised based on 
"nren nllocation letter" issued by the Government Authority 

(3) Refer Note 15(a) for pledge as securities for liabilities 

Capital Work in Progress 

, Particulars 

Ca it9.1.Work.iflPrq ress 
. March 31~ 2019 March 31, 2018 

.0.63 

Rs in million 

A ,rill, 2017 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

. 13 .. Otherilit~nlilble assets 'fRlL in illillibn ". 

Software As at March 31, 2019 '. : As at March 31, 2018 
As at April 01, 

2017 

Atcost,begiru:ijng of the year 25.65 19.60 19.60 
Additions 0.24', 5.96 -
Acquisitions '-' - -
Disposals .... . ?I::, ',-i' -
Tot.Ceost 

.' 

25.89 25.56 19.60 

Accumulated amortization and impairment: 
At beginning of the year 10.61 • -
Amortization 7.63 10.61 

. Disposals ',~' - -
Total amortization and impairment 18:24 10.61 • 

.J Net carrvinl! amount n .' 
7.65 r 1'[95 19.60 

14. Other Non-financial Assets . !(.\<$, in million\ 

I: As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 
As at April 01, 

2017 
. '"--

Preparei' expenses --_ ... ----
620:70 ' ... 286.75 346.23 

Balances with Government authorities ;.;: 33.77 2.31 
Other.Nonfinancial Assets 127.84 . 42.78 . 
TotaL' - ....• 748.54 363.30 348.54 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

15. Debt Securities tR$; inm)itlo1( 

:Particulars 
AsafMarch As at March 

As at April 01, 2017 
31,2019 3:t,.2018 

., 

Secured 

Debentures 100441.72 101979.47 84473.82 
. Total 100441.72 >101979.47 84,473.82 

:; 

Debt securities in India 100,441.72 ,. 101,979.47 84,473.82 
. Debt securities. outsideIndia '",,' • • . 
Total 100441.72.' > 101979.47 84)!13.8:r 

•. 16 •. 11:orro.wiixes :I:RS\inifuillil:iril 
.... 

As at March AS at March As at April 01, 2017 
:Particulars 

31,,2019 31,.2018 
~ Secured 
(a)Term loans 

(i)from banks 24,973.91 20,934.08 22,720.20. 
(ii)from Other parties 5,940.45 2,187.65 2,439.56 

(b)Loans repayable on demand 
(i) from banks 2,430.37 38.33 288.29 

33,344.73 23,160.06 25,448.05, 
Unsecured 
(a)Term loans 

(i)from banks 22,893.17 1,601.81 1,600.00 
(ii)from other parties 770.34 848.52 1,002.57 

(b)Term Deposits From Corporate 
(i)From Other parties 14,337.90 14,503.37 5,623.21 

(c )Commercial Papers 19,090.18 20,072.90 4,992.58 
57,091.59 37,026.60 13,218.36 

TotaL 90,436.32 60,186.66 38,666.41 

Borrowings in India 87,488.97 57,165.24 35,241.28 
Borrowings outsiddndia . 2,947,36 3,021.42 3,425.13 
T()tal.· ... 90436.32 60186.66 38666.41 

Refer note 44 for borrowings from related parties. 

a) All secured borrowings obtained by the Company are covered under pari-passu charge on all the assets, 
excluding specified immovable property, moveable assets within the property, specific investments, 
capital work-in-progress, prepaid and deferred expenses, advance taxes (net) and deposit with banks on 
which lien is created in favour of bank for term loans taken by the Company. 

b) During the current year aggregate amount of Rs 21.13 mn was debited by the Banks from cash credit 
account maintained by it inspite of moratorium granted by the Hon'ble NCLT. 



46'7 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

(c) The detaHs of Secured Non·Convertlble Debentures (NCDs) Issued on a private placement basis as at March 31, 2019 

Number of NCDs Issued 
NCD 
('l 

Interest 
(%p.a) Redemption 



'" 
!:serles of NCDs Number of NCDs Issued 

! 

NCO 

(') 

I~;~;~~ 
(%p.a) 

F+'*.' . c--ccf 
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JlQ5c '. 

·• .•• · .• • .• •··· •• •••••• ••.••• c •.• ·> 
D-:;;~e~f 

RedemptIon 

! 

(d) The details of Secured Zero Coupon Non-Convertible Debentures (ZCNCD), to be redeemed at premium, Issued on a prIvate 
placement basis as at March 31. 2019 

Number of ZCNCDs 
Face Value of 

ZCNCD (f) 
n Value 

<'I 

Earnest 

Date of Redemption 

(e) The Company has Issued the following subordinated debt in the form of Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures on a pflvate 
placement basis 

of NCDs Number of NCDs Issued 
Earliest 
Date of 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

17. Subordinated Liabilities 
............. XE:~ .. in"'iiijo)J' 

Particulars 
;As at March 31,. As at March 31, As at April 01, 

2019 • 2018 2017 

Preference Shares (;ther than fuose that qualify 15,958.81 15,958.24 1(592.90 
as Equity 

Debt Instruments 266.81 256.39 238.50' 

Total {.,---

.,:J.i5;2~.Q;!: ... 1(j,214.63 14,831,40" r ____ 

Subordinated Liabilities in India 16,2~,62. . 112,214.63., 14831.40 
Total 16;225:62' 16;214:63' 14;831.40 

----

18. Other Financial Liabilities 
/Rii.,in mlIfiQn " 

Particulars 
:. As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01, 

2019 2018 2017 

Interest accrued but not Due. 132.71 109.36 68.28 
Unpaid dividends 12.60: 13.34 116.58 
Covered Warrants 1 1,943.001 1,943.00 1,943.00 
(Refer note (i)) 
Payable to employees 15.78 . 0.03 
Payable to related parties :i~_' 12.77 9.20 
Security Deposits 525.81 999.74. 356.94 
Option price received in advance 36.67 36.67. 36.67 
Letter of Credit Devolvement 287.47 ,~ -
Others 20.13 22.21 21.74 

• 
Total '2914.23. '3137.09 2552.44 •. 

i) Above covered warrant taken against investment which is given in noteH 8 

Covered Warrants are issued to a SubSidiary Company and entitles the SubSidiary Company to the 
underlying economic benefits arising from specified investments held by the Company 

19. Provisions 

, Particulars 

Provisions for employee benefits 
.' OlherPr.o.visions 
,Total 

20. Other Non Financial Liabilities 

jStarultOl'Y dues 

As at March 31, 
2019 

127.53 
';';' 

127 .. 53 

, As at March 31, 
2019 

(~;' in ;ltilJ.!Iory\ 
As at March 31, As at April 01, 

2018 2017 

369:82 520.06 
0.01; -

369.83 520.06 

I 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

21. Interest income 
itl$Lm~Qn'\' 

.. , i 

Particulars 
Year Ended March 31, Year Ended March 31, 

2019 , 2018 

On Financial A.ssets measured at 
Amortised Cost 
Interest on Loans 5,033.71 9,016.37 
(Refer Note-1.12) 
Jnterest income from investments 140.31 1,011.88 
Other interest income 24.49 165.71 
Total 

---------
'5198.51 

.0· 
i6193.96 

22. Fees & Commission Income 
fRs: inmllli!}J;l. 

Particulars 
. YearllndedMarch :31; ·YeaiEiidedMa.rcn31, 

2019 2018 

Consultancy Fees 15.26 513.35 
Guarantee Fee Income 232.60 405.84 
Project Fees - 660.62 
Other Fees .. 149.50 544.98 
Tot"f ,. 397.36 2,124.79, 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

23.A Net 

Particulars 

account :-

Investments 

23.B Net gain/(loss) on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category 

Year Ended March 
31,2019 

Particulars 
..........• . ....... . 

----, ""'Y'ear"Ended-'March'--' 
31,2019 .. 

rFinanCial assets-measu'red 'cil'am"orHs'ed -cost 
~Fi1)ancialliabilities measured at amortised cost 

Total Net"gain on derecoenition of financial instruments under ,amortised_cosJ cah~gory_ .. 

24. OthediWom~ 
P~ittictilars"" 

.. .. 
-B-G.q:;fveries . 

Total 

25.Ei\j.,,;;eC9~h .... 
Particular'g-

Ia) Interest Costs (Refer Note-1.12) 
Interest on deposits 
Interest on borrowings 
Interest on debt securities 
Other Finance expense 
b) Dividend on-Redeemable-Pr-eferenceBhares ____ 

Iotal 

72.24 

72.24 

;1 Year Ended March 
31,2019 

I 1,285.14 
, 1285:14 

... 

Year Ended March 
31,2Q19 

i 

809.92 , 
3,104.77 
4,769.36 

483.14 
1,39,9.13 

~0,566,32 

471 

Year Ended March 
31,2018 

Ye~ii---Ended' March-
31,2018 

112.53 

112.53 

.(Rsdmnijllpn\ . 
Year Ended March 

31,2018 

26.88 
·26 .. 88 

. (Rs,lhniillibni 
Year Ended March 

31,2018 

778.93 
3,484.94 
8,208.73 

91.50 
1363.41 

13927.51 

oJ 



On Loans 
On investments 
On other Financial assets 
On Trade Receivables.,,_ 

. Total 

.27.llmployee·benefits 

Salaries and wages -fnduding--bonus 

Particulars 

Contribution to provident and other funds 
Staff welfare expenses 
To-tal - . 

28. O:~Pt.c!at'loii andcAlri9ilfsa\i'o;ti 'Ei'iieifi;. 

Particulars 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 12) 
-Depreciation of investment property (Note 11) 
-Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 13) 
T()ta1..D~predatjorij~u:i_A"AnJQ),;HsaH(in-Expens_e 

....... 

29. Otherll*i?iiii.~i;; 

Particulars 

Rent, taxes and energy cosfs----
Repairs and maintenance 
Communication Costs 
Printing and stationery 
Advertisement and publicity 
-Director's fees, allowances and expenses 
Auditor's fees and expenses 
Lep;al and Professional charges 
Insurance 
Travelling & Conveyance 
Other exoenditure 
Total 

-----", 

Amounts paid! payable to Statutory Auditors ~; 

Pax:ticulars 

• 
I 

'. 

. 

. 

Year Ended March 
·31,2019 

··95;429.01 
96,804.75 

287.47 
J.784.88 

194306.11 

Year Ended March 
31,2019 

362.40 
34.97 
11.33 

408.70 

Year Ended March 
31,2019 

69.20 
192.24 

7.63 
169;07 

Year Ended March 
31,2019 

2i8.47 
164.49 

8.83 
3.32 

11.55 
18.85 
11.87 

145.34 
3.53 
1.23 

29.78 
.. 6P.26. 

.FY2019.· 

472 

Year Ende,fMarch .-, '. 
31,2018 

75.87 
460.00 

535.87 

IR1Uji'JJ;tillioIiL 

Year Ended March 
31,2018 

631.41 
44.33 
33.81 

709.55 . 

. (L<~. in.u,IUWf1 \ 

Year Ended March 
31,2018 

97.05 
211.63 
10.61 

319:29' 

.(Rll •. ih'i11IJiol1) .. 
Year Ended March 

31,2018 

235.45 
156.89 

6.66 
4.20 

22.32 
5.54 

24.19 
125.94 

.2.66 
28.90 
59.69 

1572:44 

(RS,';nlrimlon.:c 
FY2018 

-Audit'Fees to 21 . 
Other Services ".-::. 0.11 
OutofPocket Expenses.·.. ~0.25 

CST I Service Tax of Rs 0.01 mn (Previous Year: Rs O.Olmn) has been accounted and Input creart taken under GST / Service Tax Rules~ 
The reversal of 50% input credit has been included under Other Services in current year and under Rates & Taxes in previous year 

/ 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

30 Dividend paid and proposed during the year 
:r~> intl,i\!llQi~) 

"----
As at March 31, AsatMarch 31, 

Particulars 
2019 2018 

Declared and paid during the year 
Dividends on ordinary shares: 
Final dividend fer 2019: INR Nil per share (2018: lNR 4.25 per share) NiL 

'," 
545.71 

Total DividendseNid 
_ .. _--

,. ,-~;;'" .. 5.45.71 .{ 

31 Earnings per share (EPS) 

The basiceaminJ,;s·:p.e.r share has been calculated hased. QnJhe.JQlloWWIl> JR'sdn lllvliQn) 
Particulars 

...... As at March 31, As at March 31, 

---- .2019 2018 
Neminal Value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00 
Net (less)/prefit after tax available fer equity sharehelders (Rs in millien) (225,440.22) 3,317.27 
Weighted average number ef equity shares (Nes.) 128,403,276 

.. 
128,403,276 

.Basic / Pil1!tedEPS (Rs.}.. ............... . .(},755.72\ 25.83 



may 
Gujarat ':::o'nl11oer'Cial Tax (excluding interest and penalty) 

liability that may arise in respect of matters in 

I(~~~.~~~e~: interest and penalty) 
!I State Insurance 
I'Jnl:onle Tax Demand 
Guarantees 

amount of contracts remammg to be executed 
account and not provided for 

INI)n-Di"posal undertakings to lenders and/ or equity investors 
Letter of ComfortJ Parent 

Debt Servicing Reserve 
I (D6RA),Shl)Itl'all Undertaking and Sponsor Support Ulld,,,t,,kilogl 

474 

Ila=S 
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NOTES TO THE fINANCIAL STATEMENTS Wn. TIfE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

33 Employee benefit obligations 
a) DefilH'd conlribution plans 

Contributions to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund ilre considcn~d as defined contribution plans and arc charged to the St,\lcmcnt at Profit am! Loss bolscd 
on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services arc rendered bv the employCC,>s. 

The! Comp~ny has subscribed to a Group Gratult)' cum Life Assurance Scheme of an insurance company for gratuity payable to the employees. The incremental 
liability based on fI(tuarial v.lIuation as per the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the reporting dale, is charged to the St.1tcmcnl of Profit and Loss. Actuarial guin 
or loss is re<.:01!nised in the Statement of Profit ilnd Loss. 

Leave balam;:es am d~ssifled as short-term and long-term based on the best estimates after mnsidedng past trends. The short-term leave encashment liability for the 
eXp!.,<:ted ICilve to be encilshed h~s been measured on actual \:omponenls eligible for [eilve enCilshmenl and exp(;Cted short-term leave 10 be availed is v.llucd bawd on 
the fotill cost to the Company. Long-term leaveenCilShment liability hilS been valued on actuarial basis as per the Proj(;Cted Unit Credit Method. 

1» Defined benefit plans 
TheCompany has iI defined benefit gratuity plan in India (funded). The Compilny's defined benefit gr,,[uity plan is a final salary plan for lnrlia emplo}'ccs, which 
rlXl,liTes contributions to be made: 10 a separatcly adminisicred fund. The gratuity plan is governed by thc P<lymcnt of Gr,ltulty Act 1972.'Under the act, employl)(! 
who has complctcd nve )'ears of servicc is entitled to spedfic benefit. The level of bencfits prOVided depends on the member's length of service and salar)' at 
retirement ~Re. 
The following !ilbl"s summarise Ute C'omponellts of net benefit e"pense rCt:ognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded st~tus and amounts rcco{:niscd in 
the balancc sheet for the respe<:tivc plans: 

II t~l~t1!'stiEkpl!,*S" 
Pilim.:;,;.<ii;coSt· 

v. 10:: du' etlSsi, 
Interest Expenscs 

eresl· 01 e· 
. NeLlntcrest-" 

r -,a eUi.· 
Less: Interest income'induded above 

, Return. .n-) an il.5s~Js,e)( ludin interest income 

of Plan Assc! 

~~i.p"lif- -'tId' ::e.ruit'RbC'tJ""nls" 
Past Service Cost- (non vesle benefits) 
Past $crvicc Cost -(ves'ted benefits) 
Avcrage rell\~ining future service ti!! vesting of the benefil 

R(;Co)(nised Past scrvke Cost- non vested bcncffts 
R(;Coy'flised P"st service Cost_ vested benefits 

,.,'trnwc iscd.-.r t.. Yice.-oskno _yt's _bcndits. 

I 
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NOTES TO mE fINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

. pVc 'a{c;:;d ofperiocf' 
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of period 

d , 
Ncl-A~e iability- . .f"OCO ni:red,jnJhe .. b,llancesheet 

:'Xii"o.th{!f;-:C~mpn\~en.<i!vilncomed(;ja:};· 
Aciu;l'ri,t!-(Giml)/ LeIss reCo):nlicd 'fcii"llic"p'i,m6-a 
Asset limiteffer.:t 
Return on PJan Assets excludi111!. net interest 
JJnrecCl/tn_i_ze,9_ ,~c_t_u_;\.£.ij'll_JGili-''!)/Lo.~_~.JfSm_1, prC'd9_lIS, pcriQ~1 
Total- tundal· G,1n -l.oss-fc£!I \il.ed-in- 1 _ 

XIlI;-M~e'tnl!i1ui-4d'the.ii.t~ii{ -.rub nfrid;r~;halan ·Sit~~t 
Open'jng Net Liability 
Adlustment to openinp, balance 
Expem;r~s as above 
Contribution paid 
OtherComprcmuhsive Incomc(OCll 
Transfer in Uilbility 
Trans((>r out LiabiHtv 
Oosl Net Liabili\Y; 

xv Proicctcd_Scrvkc eosl3l Mar 2020 
XVI. ,i\S!!I1HnfO:nnailiii; 

Casll ilnd Cash equivalents 
Gratuity Fund (HDFe Standard Ufe InsurancQ Company) 
Debt Security· Government Bond 
Equitv Securities - Corporate debt se<:uritlcs 
Other Insur~m:1;' contracts 
Proprulv 
Tot'l cmizc- Is 

Mortality 

[fltcrest / Discount R~t(! 
Rail' of increase in compensation 
Annuill !ncrN~C in hcallhcllwcosts 
-FulurcChanstcs in m~ximum st,)!c hcalthcarc benefits 
Expected ilycral!.t' rcma!nini!. service 

EmplOye<: Attrition Rille (Past Service (PS) ) 

PVQ 

XIX' £Wi'clid'PavDiil 

Year 

Pa\'Dll 

~~ A«i¥i:1rib'ilrt 'Cain- --,lIs"on ~ 
: Yf.'ar 
rVo at end of period 
PI,," Assets 
Surp!us! (Deficit) 
EXrK'rir.nc~_nd;ustme!\ts on )lan assets 

"'(2M 

1-1\ 

30 ; 

(45') 

11 

(4S;) , 
29 

(30) 

(2) 
.(4; 

Tota! Amount 

>~~O%; 

laO%! 

" o%: 

• 
O~I 
u;-;;1 

" 
-YALM (2006-(18): IALM (2006-08) 

Ult. Uli. 

0.0644, 
D;.O~ 

DR: Dis.;ouut Rate 

0.0746 
O~05 

ER: Sillary Escalation Rate 

. P:VO'ER+1%_' V-- E -l% 

EXpt'Cicd Outgo Eltpectcd Outgo- Expe<:tcd Outgo Expected Outgo_ -Expected Outgo_ 
First Second Third Fourth Fifth 

43· 23. 14- , 
:\1~ ,- I- -19 

'632" -616 -509 -476-

647 661 554 534 
14 4S 4S 57 

42 , 1 
1.12' 

E>(pectcd 
Outgo Six to 

To • ,-

7 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, :2019 

34 Loans 

a) Credit quality of assets 

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company's internal credit rating system and year-end stage classification. The amounts 
presented are gross of impa.irment allowances. Details of the Group's internal grading system and policies on whether ECL allowances are calculated on an individual or collective basis are 
disclosed in note. 

,A 
B 

je 
'D 

~" 

6.,362.06;' 
5,195.06-" 

Total 

,", "I' C ,~. 'j:; 6.362.06 
;:.;, Ii ' 5,195,06 

QJ<;t:;,)~AA:; QJ<;t:;')",tRR 

>i-;' 
:i';'~' 

'~ 

37,108.66 
11,.822.24 

'7', 

"l!:', 

Total 

14,250,84 
37,108.66 
11,822.24 

5,461.27 
... : 
~, 

. 
23,709.18 
14,005.48 

. 

Total 

5,46127 

l't,UU;;I.'!O 

'i;5.9,' 

'!<:A 

H 

:s with thiS ri.i:lmg are considered to have the hlghest/high/adequate degree' of safely regarding timely,,,,, V,1.,U'J;', 

:ilktrumeols carry lowest credit risk. 
:,1 ~truments .... ·ith this rating are considered to have moderate degree of safety/moderate/high risk of default regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. 
i Such instruments carry moderate credit risk 
~ ':$ vdth this rating- are considered to have very hitm risk of default regarding timelY servicing of finandal oblii;:ations. 

~ with this ratiIjg,are in default or are e~peded to be in 
kC 
kD 

b) Analysis (If changes in the gross carrying amount of tenn loans 

f'articulilIS 

OPening' baJaIicl-i 

;;:c 4~::;O74?," 3,491.841 

95,13~041 

c) Reconciliation of EeL balance 

t."nil;O 4,368,25.1 91,060.76 " 

to Stage 1 

(l3~86)1 ,. 'I "";' 

l:rransfers to Stage 2 13286 • 
Transfers to Stage 3 (10.0?) (2,026.71) 2,.036.78 

',,,,""" 

':'-"'-

46,999.26 8,789.57 11,216.24 :", 20,005.81 
,:ii 

-:;', ; ,~; 

~,:, , ',,,:!:: 0":,' 

'C"" iI ,;;,,~ 'i:;,--' '. ',l;., 

95,429.01 1 130.33 I (54.46)! -", 75.87 

,. 
t .' • 

;'i," >'"'' 

~ 
"'Jl 
'l 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

3S Fair value measurement 

a) Fair value hierarchy 
The Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard and on the basis of 
'Red', ' Amber' and' Green' as indicated in note 1.3. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table. . 

measured at fair value-

investments at FVTPL 
- Fully convertible Debentures 
- Optionally convertible debentures 
- Units of Trust and incubation trust 

IFina.,ci,,1 investments at FVTPL 
- FullV convertible Debentures 
- Optionally convertible debentures 
- Units of Trust and incubation trust 

- Interest r<ltc swaps 
- Futures 
- Options 

As at ,:;'i,. 

IAssets i at, 
,fair value 
, a,,.,, 
investments at FVTPL 

- FullV convertible Debentures 
- Optionally convertible debentures 
- Units of Trust and incubation trust 

~.;;:,., I assets. 

- Interest rate swaps 
- Futures 
- Options 

Levell 

Levell 

Levell 

". 

Level 2 

Level 2 

Level 2 

507.79 

",' 

36.70 

LevelS 

Level 3 

10,620.00 
1,500.00 
5,114.14 

Leve13 

7,670.00 
1,500.00 
5,114.14 

Total 

800.00 

337.79 

Total 

10,620.00 
1,500.00 
5,114.14 

161.27 

m'",;, ; 

To'al 

'~ 

7,670.00 
1,500.00 
5,114.14 

507.79 

14,'.:""_ 
. 
-
c 

,'" 
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479 
;t"La 

Levell: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and equity securities) is based 
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the 
current bid price. These instrum_ents are induded in level 1. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments th,-1t are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is 
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of obselvable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific 
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is induded in level 2. 

Level 3: If OIle or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in leveJ 3. This is the 
case for unlisted equity securities. 

111ere nre no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year. For transfers in and out of level 3 measurements see (iii) below. 

b) Valuation technique used to determine fair value 
Specific valuation teclmiques used to value financial instruments include: 

Debentures and Units - On assessing the liquidity position of the entities, the Comp,my assessed that several entities were not in a position 
to discharge all of their payment obligations. In light of the moratorium granted by the NCLAT via order dated 15th October 2018, to 
determine a course of action for such entities, a solvency construct was developed in consultation with the Legal Advisor and Resolution 
Advisor, based on the ability of an entity to discharge all operational and financial obligations as and when they fall due, in a 12 month 
look-ahead period. Further, the entities should not be relying on other IL&FS group companies for any financial support required by that 
company to service its obligations (financial or operational). The Resolution advisor undertook a solvency test based on 12 month cash 
flows provided by respective companies. Based on this solvency test, companies were classified as 
"Green"; Domestic Group Entities which can continue to meet aU their payment obligations (both operational and financial) as and when 
they become due; 
/I Amber"; Domestic Group Entities which are not able to meet all their obligations (financial and operational), but can meet only 
opemtional obligations and payment obligations to senior secured financial creditors; and 
"Red": Domestic Group Entities which cannot meet their payment obligations towards even senior secured financial creditors, as and 
when such payment obligations become due 

The carrying amount of trade receivable, trade payable, debt securities, other finanCial liabilities, loans, other financial assets, cash and cash 
equivalents as at 31st March, 2019, 31st March, 2018 and 1st April, 2017 are considered at cost which is same as fair values, due to their 
short term nature. These are claSSified (IS Level 3 fair value hierarchy due to inclusion of unobservable inputs including counter party 
credit risk. 
During the reporting period ending 31st March, 2019, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements. 

\ ofleye13 '" .\, 

,3101 

~ ,., 
h~ otal gain, 

in pre 'or loss ./ 
inOC 

3,35a. 
Sales (900. JO) 

IsersQu, , 
,nd 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

36 Financial Risk Milna~ement 

IL&FS Limited is reg.istered with Reserve Bank of India as a Non·Deposit taking, Systemically 1mportant Core Investment Company (CrC-ND-S1). The 
Company is an Loan and Investment holding company and hence, does not engage in the business of lending funds to third party customers. In 
compliance of Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, the Company holds not less than 90% of its net assets in the form of 
investments in equity shares, preference shares, and loans in the form of bonds, debentures, debt to group companies. Also the Company is supposed to :2 
hold atleast 60% in Inveshnents . nl{~ Loans given and investments made in Group Compariies are majorly in infrastructure business and are long term in 
nature. 

36.1 Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or a customer contract, leading to a finandalloss. The 
Company is exposed to credit risk from its financlll.g activities towards inter corporate deposits to subsidiaries where no Significant impact on credit risk 
has been identified. The group does not have external exposure and hence concentration risk is not applicable. 

36.2 Liquiditv risk 

'Liquidity r.isk' is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its day to day financial obligations that are settled by delivering cash or 
al\other financial assets. 

IL&FS Ltd is registered with RBI as a CIC. TIle Company is an investment holding company and consequently holds assets in the form of investments in 
equity shares, preference shares, bonds, debentures, debt or loans to group companies. The Company is exposed to liquidity risk due to borrowings .:md 
trade and other payables. The Company usc;'! to measures risk by forecasting cashflows. The Board had delegated the responsibility of managing overall 
liquidity risk and interest rate risk management to a committee of the Bo,wd of Directors, in form of Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO). The Credit 
and Risk Management Department(CRMG) would manage the ALCO based on the RBI norms for Asset Liability Management. The loans given to group 
companies were repayable by the companies on demand. Thus, IL&FS Ltd could call back a loan from the group companies as and when its liabilities {"ll 
due. Additionally, the Company had a practice to maintain a portfolio of highly liqUid mutual fund units. Due to the default situation the Company is not 
been able to meet its liability those that have matured~';·The maturity analysis for financialliabHities and financial assets has been disclosed in note to the 
finilnciill statements. These have been worked out based on certain principles which have been mentioned therein. 

36.3 Milrket Risk 

The 'Market risk' is the risk thnt the fnir vnlue or future Cashflow of" financi"l instrument will fluctuate because of Changes in market price .Market risk 
comprises three types of risk, foreign currency risk interest rates risk ,and other price risk like equity price risk. Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that the 
fair value or future Cashflow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in foreign exchange rates. The Company has not lent in Foreign 
Currency and also has a small amount of investment in foreign currel\cy~;Hence on the Asset side the Foreign Currency Risk is negligent. in case of the 
Foreign Currency Borrowings the smne has been majorily hedged. Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value of future Cashflows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market rates. Again the Company lends to Group Companies at fixed rate~·The margins for the same are also good. 
Hence the risk of fluctuating interest rates has miniluai impact. Currently the Company borrows from Debentures, Bank Loans, Commercial Paper and 
Short Inter Corporate Deposits. The interest rates are fixed for Debentures, CP and JCD. The Bank loans arc linked to MCLR (Milrginal Cost of funds based 
Lending Rate) and arc variabl~ 

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities dccreascs as the result of Changes in the level of equity indices and individual stocks, The 
Company has major investments in unquoted investments and arc infrastructure based. The price risk for such equity are subject to unforeseen downsides. 

36.4 Operational Risk 

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Company's processes, personnel, systems and 
from external factors other than. credit. comoliance, reDutation. market and liauiditv risks. 

The Company has also in place critical security created for is data, software and hardware Measures are adopted to effectively protect against phishing, 
sodal media threats and rOlrue mobile. 

36.5 Capital Management Risk 

The Reserve Bmlk of India (RBI) sets and monitors capital ratio and debt to adjusted ratio for the Company from time to time. The Core Investment 
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directiolls, 2016, stipulate that the Adjusted Net Worth of a CIC~ND~SI shall at no point in time be less than 30% its risk 
weighted assets On balance sheet and risk adjusted value of off-balance sheet items as on date of the last audited balance as at the end of the finilncial year; 

TIle Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, further stipulate that the outside liabilities of a CIC·ND-SI shall at no point of time 
exceed 25 times its Adiusted Net Worth as OIl date of the last audited balance as at the end of the financial vear. 

ill respect of disclosure of risk management in view of the m,ltter described the disclosure currently are not determinable. 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

37 Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturities 

In view of the matter described in Note~1, the disclosures required under lndAS 107 are currently not determinable. 
All Finanacial Liabilities are at amortised cost. 

38 Market Risk 

481 

Market risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign 
eXdUln2C rates and equity prices. 

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk 
The Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in lnd AS 107, since neither the 
carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates. 

ia) Interest rate risk exposure 
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate chnnges nt the end of the reporting period are as follows: 

It~>hfrnn1f6-ii . 

Particulars As at As" As" 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 201S April 1, 2017 

Variable rate borrowing 56,416.19 25,909.76 28,213.42 
Fixedcratc.,borrowing- " .,' ·127·832,29 - 131--50l.{)9_ ,9Moiho;, 
Totatll(Jrt w· " 

_._-
74108 =9",47 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Floating 
rate instruments exposes the Company to cash flow interest risk, whereas fixed interest rate instruments expose the Company to fair value interest risk. 

As per the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Core Investment Company (Clq framework, the core business of the Company is borrowing and invests in and 
proVides loans to its group companies, exposing it to interest rate risk. 

Interest rale risk is measured through earnings at risk from an earning perspective. The difference in the amount of rate sensitive assets and rate sensitive 
liabilities maturing in any time period category, gives an indication of the extent of exposure to the risk of potential changes in the morgins on new assets and 
liabilities. 

Since, going forward there will be no new borrowing and no new investment or lending will take place. Interest earned on lending and accrued on borrowing 
considered upto the period October 15, 2018 for the current financial year as of March 31, 2019. Hence the Company has not demonstrated the sensitivity of 
possible change in interest rates of the Company's statement of profit and loss 

39 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities 
In view of the matter described in Note·!, the disclosures required under IndAS 101 are currently not determinable. 

, 
.'1 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

40 Capital Risk Management 

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital ratio requirements of the 
local banking supervisor, Reserve Bank of India (RBI) of India. The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored using, among other measures, the 
regulations issued by RBI. 

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital 
requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value. "t 

In respect of the period subsequent to October 1st, 2018 the company has managed its capital in accordance with framework discussed .in note-l.2. 

'Core-inveS'tment\1oIDoallv'-'(CIC-Contn1i3ttceiRa-ftos 
P'ai1-iculars As at March 31, As at March 31, A~ at April 1, 

2019 2018 2017 
Invesbnents in group companies as a proportion of Net Assets (%) 20.90% 61.77% 66.45% 

lnvesbnent & Loans to group companies as a proportion of Net Assets (%) 65.52% 95.27%- 94.11 % 

Capital Ratio (%) (Adjusted Net worth / Risk Weighted Assets] -~83.74% 32.66% 33.50% 

Leverage Ratio (J'imes) [Outside liabilities / Adjusted Networth] (1.24) times 2.30 times 2.23 times 

The Company has transitioned to Ind AS w.e.f. April 1, 2018. The CIC Compliance Ratios as at March 31, 2019 have been calculated on the basis of 
financial statements prepared under Ind AS. The above ratios do not consider off balance sheet item while calculating leverage ratio and Capital ratio. 
the Compliance Ratios as at March 31, 2018 and as at April 1, 2017 have been calculated on the basis of financial statements prepared under IGAAP. 

The computations are subiect to the possible effect of the matters stated in note 1 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

41 Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee 
The Company has entered into commerdalleases for premises and equipment. These leases have an average life of between three 
and five years with no renewal option included in the contracts. There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into 
these leases (e.g., such as those concerning dividends, additional debt and further leasing). 

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March are, as follows: 

Within one year 
After one year but not more than five years 
More than five years 

Operating leases - Company as lessor 

31 March 2019 

(Rs. in million) 

31 March 2018 
3.01 
2.37 

5.38 

The Company acts as lessor of office equipment. These leases have an average life of between three and five years with no renewal 
option included in the contracts. There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases (e.g., such as those 
concerning dividends, additional debt and further leasing). 

Future minimum lease receipt under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March are, as follows: 

Within one year 
After one year but not more than five years 
More than five years 

31 March 2019 
382.08 

1,333.58 
724.11 

(Rs. in million) 

31 March 2018 
642.22 
566.45 

•.. . 1,208.67 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

1 
2 

3 
4 
5 

6 
7 
S 
9 

10 

. -,-" "----"-,,,-0' .'-' 

IEquity as per Indian GAAP 

LInd AS Reclassification and corresponding Interest: 
shares now considered as Liabilities (Induding security premium) 

iEIR and day one gain and loss impact 

!Sub Total 

I~ credit Losses on loans and advances 
of provision for contingencies 
of provision on loans and advances -contingencies ag4linst standard 

lassets .... 
!Suh.'n,.I 

,eVA/DVA 
of Interest accrued 

''''~<:1JCU tax on Other adjustments 
tax on EeL provision 

I tnx asset on lfor· 
ublota .... 

~:;~l eqUitvasp~ AS 

Particulars 
Nef profit a, . .,er Iri<lian"GAAY 

Iud AS Adjllst!lWI1ts;. 
. ... 

l?referenG€.share redassification -EIR.and,dav.,one Rain-:and loss-imnact 
ReversaLof,.provjsion,onl6.ari.s:~nd"advances'·' .-
Exoected creditLosses on loans and. advances 
Derivative" C V AiDVA 

Remeasurement gains. and losses 
Others 
Dere'ire"d'hix cin above-'adhistments 
Ne:t,PfQfH,as,.per,Ind AS 
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A,. at lA"ril 2017. 

IU ao, 00\ 

402.10 

(,??, " 
g 

183.81 

S~45 

2.60' 

(2'~~~:;F 
.(~~~~. 

A,af31Ma 
;:...... 584 

(1365.34 . 

(1.59 
.... '1584:1.1 

.129.90 

.(12.75 
143:0' 

3317,26 

iii • 

As at 31 March 2018 

(14,995.00) 
10';'.'4\ 

I? '01 .?" 

8,540.00 
330.49 

.... 

';.,';9.27 

1.01 
(4 ""P\ 

(10, ,;h\ 

I~~~~\ 
m 
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Preference Shares 

Classified as liability 

Under previous GAAP preference shares are considered as equity based on the legal form. However Ind AS determines preference 
shares as liability of there is obligation to settle them in cash or any other financial assets. For convertible preference shares the test 
is to see if they meet the fixed for fixed conversion criteria to be considered as equity. The Company has considered the preference 
shares as liability along with premium on the preference shared, j 

Investment 

Under the previous GAAP, investments in fully convertible debentures, Optionally convertible debentures, units of Trust and 
Incubation trust were classified as long-term investments or current investments based on the intended holding period and 
reliability. Long-term investments were carried at cost less provision for other than temporary decline in the value of such 
investments. Current investments were carried at lower of cost and fair value. Under Ind AS, these investments are carried at fair 
value. 

Others 
Fair value of premises 
By using the optional exemption under Ind AS 101 "First Time Adoption" the financial instruments are considered at fair value on 
transition date which is the deemed cost post transition, Gains on fair value is considered in retained earnings. 

Derivative CV AI DVA adjustments 
Fair value under Ind AS considered CV AI DVA adjustment hence the same is considered under Ind AS. 

Deferred tax on Adjustments 
Deferred tax have been recognised on the adjustments made on transition to Ind AS. Deferred tax assets is recognized only when 
there is probable certainty of recovery of the same. 

Security Deposits 
Under the previous GAAP, interest free lease security deposits (that are refundable in cash on completion of the lease term) flre 
recorded at their transaction value. Under Ind AS, all financial assets are required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly, the 
group has fair valued these security deposits under Ind AS, Difference between the fair value and transaction value of the security 
deposit has been recognised as prepaid rent 
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related to Para 19 of the Co.e fnvestmcnt Companies (Resenre Bank) Directions, 2016 

"bSift,e>-.to,Real Estate 
'C~-tegiiry 

.1]Direct"Exposure -
i) Residential Mortgage 

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that'l 
is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented 

ii) ;ICommercia! Real Estate 
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates 
(office buildings, rctail space, multiMpurpose commercial 
premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi·tenanted 
commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, 
land acquisition, development and construction, etc.), 
Exno!:ure shall also inclilde non-fllnn hased limits 

iii) IInvestments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other 
securitised exposures -
a) Residential 

·.b)..C.ommerciaLReal Estate, 

(b »)"~~~'d"K~~d~~r~;~" f';;~l&aS;;(rcxposure on' FiatlO'~afHousl~'g"f 
ank( NHB).and Housing Finil,nce Companies (fiFes) , 

As at March 
31, .2019 

553.13 

Rs,Cro,(e 
As at March 

31,2018 

1,842.92 

~ 

The exposure disclosed in point (ii) is net of impairment and Expected Credit Loss 

(bl A;S$~sft1abititi~MaJl3"'emen'tj\fa'turli'i' iPitfem of:certiain.item$',:Of1iSSit;a:ild:7ti*hfiitl~ 
Particulars Upto 3013i Over'T 

days month to 2 
months 

Liabilities 
Borrowings from Banks A 

'Market 'Borrowings'!, 

Ass,eis 
Loans I Advances· 
Investments·· 

Over'i'montli 
t03 months 

In view ofmatler described in Note 1, the disclosure required above are currently not derenninable 
" Borrowings includes interest accrued thereon 
• Loans & Advances includes interest accrued and net of Expected Credit Loss 

," Over3 
month to 6 

months 

*'" Investments includes investment in Equity, Debt Inslruments (net of impairement) and Fixed Deposits (net of impainncnt) 

'Over 6 Over 1 Over'3 
imonth to 1 year to 3 year to 5 

year year year 

(j've;r'5 
years 

;ats!3fii"" 
'-To't'al 

5029.74 
1405itii6: 

1245.57 
1;Q12.08 

A"> 

~ 
00 
OJ 
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44 Related Party Transactions 

44.1 As per Ind AS 24 on 'Related party disclosures' the related parties of the 
Company are as follows: 

(A) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to a reporting entity 
if that person . 

(i) has control or joint control over the reporting entity; - NIL 

(li) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or - NIL 

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity 

• (a) i Mr U day Kotak,· Chairman (w~{ OctlJber 3, 2018) 

· (el Mr Ch'"!ldra$heI<)1ar Rllian, [)jrector (we{October3, 2018) 
.d)Mr Bijay Kumar, Deputy Managing Director (wejDecember21,20T8) ... 

:f) Ms Malini Shankllr,Director (we October 1, 2018) 
'g) Mr Nand I(ishore,Director (w.e/October 1, 2Q18) 

(i) Mr Natarajan Srinivasan, Director (JVe{December 12,2018) 

MrArunK Saha,Joint Managmg Director & CEO (uptoOdober 1,2(18) 

o Mr Sanjeev Doshi, Dircctor(upto Odoberl,2018) 

r Mr Ravindra Chandra Bhargllva,Director (upto October 1, 2018) 

{t Mr Michael Pinto, Director (lipto Odob~r 1,2018) 
ul MrJaithiIth Rao,Director ("pta OclobeT 1,2018.0 

w)Jv[r Y()shihil<:oMivauchi,Director (tlpto May 30, 2018) 
· (x) Mr Harukazu Yamaguchi,Director(IIPto October 1,2(18) 
.... (Yl .. Mr I<:iYQshi Fushitani, Dire.ctoiI';;dNiqy30, 2018 a"diij;idOcioberl,2018j ..... . 

(z) ... Mr I(iyokazu Ishllabe, AlternateDirector (upto October 1,2018) 
aa) MrIk1.lo Nakamura, Alternate Director WpioO"tober 1, 2QtS} 

The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) vide its Order dated October 1, 
2018 has superseded the Board of the Company by constituting the new Board of 
Directors 

A iisl of c!os~ members alld fulfatil},s as provided by the KMP, is mc!osed sparalelY to this lisl 
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(B) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies: 

(i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that 
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others)-

(a) PARENT COMPANY/ ENTITIES THAT HAVE SIGNIFICANT 
INFLUENCE OVER THE REPORTING ENTITY - NIL 

(b) SUBSIDIARIES - DIRECT 

...... 

2 Chhotagovindpur & Bagbera Drinking Water Supply Project Limited 

4IL&:FSAliports Limited 

5' IL&FS Education & Technology Services Limited 

6 IL&FSEnergy j)eydopment C;ompanyLimited 

8: IL&:FS Financial Services Limited 

9 IL&FS Global Pte Limited 

··1 f· IL&FSMaiit:irrielrifi'asttuct:Ui:eCompanyLimited 

12 IL&FSFararupRefmeryWater (United 

13 IL&:FS Porttolio Management Services Limited 

14 IL&FS Securities Services Limited 

·15 IL&:FS Technologies Limited 

16 IL&FS 1'ownship&:DrbanAssetsLimited 

17 IL&FS Transportation Networks LUnited 

18· IL&FS Water Limited 

19 CPG BPM Services Private Limited (formarly known as ISSL ePG BPO P,ivate 
Limited wefOctober09, 201/f:) 

·20 ISSL Settlemerif&1'ransacttoriSeMcesLllllitecj 

21 Jharkhand Accelerated RoaaDevdopment Company LUnited·· 

22 Khambhat Port Limited 

23, MP Toll Roads Limited 
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(c) SUBSIDIARIES - INDIRECT 
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41 

(Singapore) Pte Limited 

Company 

on April 20, 

Mandvi LNG Terminal Ltd) 
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Limited 

Private 

* 
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127 . RajJidMetroRail Gurgaon Limited 

128 RajJidMetroRail Gurgaon South DmIted 
129 RateCli Wind PowerPrlvateLllnited 

130 'JRDF Power Projects Lllnited 

131 Rohtas Bio Energy Litnit~d 

133 'Sabarmati Capital Two Limited 

134 Saptaswara Agro-Farms Private Limited* 

135 L$eTel1 F"ctor COfPorati()l1 .... 

'137: •. SeaIafidWarehousmg Private Lllnited 

138 Senalizacion, Viales e Imagen SAU 
139 Sharjah General SerVices LLC (uptoAugust 9,2018) 

140 Shendra Green Energyl,imited .........• 

143 skill Training Assessment Managel1leI1tl?a!t11er~I,itnited 

1471 Tierra Enviro LinUied 

148 rLJ!liqu"\i7,,ste Pwce.ssi!lg,C:;"mpany Limited 
149 ;Vansh NimayInfrap~()jectsLitrlit'?c! 
150 \ Vejas PowerProjeets'Lllnited i.jrJrmer!)'Ir.:&FSWitld Prq/ects Developmellt 

Ltd; 
151 West Gujarat Expressway LinUted 

152WindUrja India Private Limited 

153 'Yala Constructi0l1 Company Private .Limited 

(d) JOINTVENTURES-DlRECT 

,mHULa Integrated Development Agency 
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(e) JOINT VENTURES - INDIRECT 

1 Assam Power Project DevelopmentCo~pany Limited 

2! BengalIl1t~gratedInfrastr\lctpreI)e\Tel()Etrlef)tI:~1ilited ....... . 
3 .•• B"ngal Urban InfrastructureDevelopmentLimited' 

4J3m"r'Power lrifrastructtiieCompany Private Limited 

5 Chennai Industrial Water UiilityCompany Limited 

6! Chongqing Yuhe Expressway Co.I:itrlit"d 
. 7 Consorcio de Obras Civilies Conciviles. SRL 

....... g! 'Cross Border Power TransnussloiiLimiied 

tj!!DamodarValleyTo\lJ:ism'Develop~entPrlvateLimited 

10 IFree Trade Warehousing Private Limited 

11 i Future Retail Destination Limited 

13' Gujarailridustti"IInfrasttucmreProjectLimited 

14 gujarat Tourisfrl()pporn:nityLimited 

15 Hubbali Dhlll:wad\X1at~~ S"pplYl'rojectMd 
16 IL&FS Milestone Realty AaVisors Private Lmuted 

17 lridraprasthaEnergy& Waste M~tCompany Limited 
18" ' Infrasttucture DevdopmentCompany of Nagaland 1"t1vll.te Limited 

19 InfrastructutepevelClEtrl.,l1t\=,Cltporation of AS~atn~~ted* 
, .. 

20 JhaJ:.liliand Infrastructure Development CotporationLimited* 

21' JorahatShillongExpresswayLiffiiied(upioAugUJI 15,2018) 
22 : KSIIDC.IL&FSProject Development Company Limited 

24, NAM Expressway Limited (Iplo August 15, 2018) 

25 Noio,i Toll Bridge Company Limited 

26' ONGC TripuraPowerCbmpanyLimited 

27 Orissa Project Development Companyr,,~ted 

28' PDCOR Limited 

29' . SaiiryaUrf" Company of Rajasthan Limited 
30' so\,ihCoastintrastructureDevelopment Company of AndhraPradesh 

Limited 
31 Standard Chartered IL&FSMal1agement(Sir:gap()l:e)pt~Ijmited* 

32 Syniverse Technolo£;i,,~.(Il1dia)J?riV"ate~irnit"4 

34" Viasy Constiucciones,yIll.conSRL 
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--IYfS 
(1) ASSOCIATES - DIRECT 

2 Dighi Project Development Companyhitnjted 

3 Mangalore SEZ Limited 

(g) ASSOCIATES -INDIRECT 

1 'Canopy Housing & Infrastructure Limitecl 

2 ITN!:1:'0gM,anagement Services Limite~ 
3·· KSIDC IL&FS IDC Infrastructure Limited 

5 Punjab Bi()!l1ass Power Limited 

6 Srinagar SonamargTunndwayLimited (upto,1ugustJ5,2018) 

7' Thij:u:vanal1thapura!D:)~:oad j)evelopment Company Limited 

9Ul'jal1kurShree TatyasallebKoreWarna Power Compil1yLirrliiecl 

10 Vizag Agriport Private Limited 

11\iVar()rac:hal1drapurJ3ag~~1'l!(:r()1l RoadLimited * 
12CGl=S;S:A 

13 SOCleclacl COllcessioniiia Autovia A=4M"drid 

14 Ramky Elsamex Hyderabad Ring Road Limited 

16 Elsamex Roads & Irifiastrud:ineWLL 

1 T'PaiioDevelopersPrivat"tirrlited* 

(b) OTHER ENTERPRISES OVER WHICH IL&FS DIRECTLY OR 
INDIRECT HAS CONTROL 
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(ti) One entity is an associate or joint ventrue of the other entity (or an associate or joint 
ventrue of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member) 

(a) SUBSIDIARY OF INDIRECT ASSOCIATE 

I: .. 1 1 Rajasthan Land Holdings Limited 

(b) SUBSIDIARY OF DIRECT JOINT VENTURE 

1 . C;If7I'<;:9gectiveI.!1."".s1f!1elltMa!1~ge111eIltCompanyI:imited 
zGIFTSEZLiinited 
3 CGIFf DisiiiCtCooJffig Systems Limited 

4 GIFT ICT Services Limited 

5 G If7I'I'(),:"er<;:()111p~!1I:rcirnited .. 
6 GIFT Waste ManagementS"rVices Limited 

8 RID COR Infra Projects Limited 

(c) SUBSIDIARY OF INDIRECT JOINT VENTURE 

1 Mussoori" SJCyCirCo PVi:ttd* 

2 Birthi Power Co. Pvt Ltd* 

3 Seraghat Power Co Pvt Ltd* 

4 Haldia Free Trade Warehousing Private Limited* 

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party - NIL 

(iv) One entity is a joint ventrue of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the 
third entity- - NIL 

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the 
reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself 
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity - NIL 

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a)- NIL 

.f 
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l 
(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of 

the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity)- NIL 

(viii) 

* 

The entity, or any member of group of which it is part, provided key management 
personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity- NIL 

The Shareholding Patterns of these Companies have not been received for March 31, 2019, and these 
Companies have been considered based on the last available information 

@ The Companies have filed an application Jar stick off of name with MCA under Fast Track Exit 
scheme 

# These Companies ha1Je filed an application for Vollintary Lquidation 
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NOTl:S TO THE FINANCIAL STATt:MENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 1.019 

: The following inform~tian has not ~n presented above, as the Company is in the prcx:ess of compiling 
(al The Related Party Ii$!: does not Include JointlyCOntroUed Operations that form p~rtofIL&FS Group 
(b) The Comparative information forthe year ended March 31, 2018 under Ind AS 
Ie) The Statement of the significant tran5~ctlan, compnay wi~ during the year ended March 31, 2019 
(d) The Balance shawn above are the grass values, it does notlndude adjurtments carried towards Eel and Impairm~nts farlnd AS adjustments. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

~"ji[(f}~44j.~i!I<l.nc~sll,s,~t lI!I~r~1) 3I;:iQl.9' 
, Enterprises' 

Joint 'lover Which 
Ventures ,: ILFS Has 

Contml 

JRs. I"MIllion) 

-¥ - ~4~ . ;~_ ',f', 

r "-, ~/~;'4, ~-fa. $/. &L 1k,'~i{:i'';' , ..:::1 Nature ofTransactions Subsidiaries:! Associates 
Key 

Management I Grand Total 

Personnel ~ ~o/~..,~ 
'":', . 1i.<b; /~Etts~ , 

O~r-~~,LF-:O;'::-,'~'~Ils:-".a~.n-'.d~ ... a~pv~a~J\"'"~g!=S~.,:.~ .. ~ ...... ~. =··~==,.., .. ==~",,-,f~1-::<08';:j,':;-?3::;-:1~.9;:i;5rl .. ~¢:L"",0C::4';:'6.:':c97:;"'.t', "'::1"';,9:-::1""9-'::.7:74+, "-'--=:::':28":-.0::::7::+~~~"~ ... ·. ~ ..... -+ .. -.-',l:':J'=Z,C:::;7=:~6.1l 
-~ '.Loans.and aavancesto employees" "," ' . .". 0.17 0.17 

J?0 

Trade Receivaples ......... ~,. ~,P§;12 2:07145.221 0.22,*~,~!!4.:i3:1 
'inteiesf~ni:ltiil;jdendAci:rued .. '. 0.75 ",t.. •.... ...i" n:1Sj\' 
Other Financial AssetsjO;S99:ilTM '6Jj5[11 -14.18 -0.00 10,592~93i 

,In)/~~tmE!nfin[jet>el,lturesl' 24,533.00 I ...I )1- 24;S33.dO) 
Assets Total 1 14,~,6Ql;5912,0$6.93jL ~;Q·O:;d1.'r "}4::nrF= 0.17 150,137.81 
~i,~,biliII~sC~~C'~=F=] . r l' J ...... ,T ....... ,Ii: . 
Jrade-Paya5les . ~~-~·~~-·-Tl4.Q?J '.. +4,391" .'F·· . -+,-2:' . J "'.'1.3511' --- 29.771: 
[~rm):liiPpsitS}iQiiIC()rpc:@t~i 1,;;192:50 .. 3,~2:L5$ '. 
((avances . .Z.!!1. . • 3.09 
iricgQ1e rei:eiYi~lil~aY~l1ce d:i? .. 
Ji1i.erestaccflJedbut not Due. 78.74 
jriien;$l:ahd=tlivt~-;;ilaA~~r4~if' ~'"F~~p3.20T" I 0.00 , 36.67.! "R .;199.87 
CoveredWiirfahfs 1,943.0q 1- "~. ~ -I' 1,943.00 
pecurity..QgpoSi!~ .. 1 132."93' ';,:, '>:..,~ ",. 13:z,9~ 
(liibilifiesTota! . I: 3,772.46 14,6~T1;82.9,Q5 19i;<lZ :1:41 r","c 5;719jj7 

Note: The following information has not been presented above, as the Company is in the process of compiling this information: 
(1) The Related Party list does not include Jointly Controlled Operations that form part of IL&FS Group 
(2) The Comparative information for the year ended March 31, 2018 under lnd AS 
(3) The Statement of the significant transaction, compnay wise, during the year ended March 31, 2019 
(4) The Balance shown above are the gross values. It does not include adjustments carried towards ECl and impairments for Ind AS 

adjustments. 
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I 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

45.1 Segment 
The Company is in the business of providing financial services reJating to the commercialisation of infrastructure including lonns and invesb11ents 
in Group Companies. As such, all activities undertaken by the Company are inddentill to the main business. There are no separate reportable 
business segments as per JudAS 108 on "Segment Reporting" 

45,2 Foreign currency risk management: 

The Company is also exposed to foreign currency risk and floating interest rate risk as it undertakes transactions denominated in foreign 
currenciesi consequently, exposures to exchange ra te fluctuations arise. These exposures Me managed within approved policy parameters 
utilizing forward foreign exchange contracts, currency swaps and coupon swaps by ensuring application of appropriate strategies 

45.3 On the basis of the information available with the Company and intimations received from suppliers (Trade Payable and Other Payables), Rs 0.28 
mn is payable as on March 31, 2019 (Previous Year: Rs 0.72 mn) to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per the disclosure requirement under 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 

45.4 The amount of Rs 0.07 mn (P.Y. Rs 0.07 mn, as on April 1, 2017 Rs 0.07 mn) payable towards maturity of NCDs (along with the interest 
component) is pending to be settled on account of clearance of probate of dece<lsed person to be submitted in the High Court. The said amount 
is included in Trade payable and has not been transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) since maHer is sub~judice. 

45.5 Events after the reporting dates 
There has been no events after the reporting: date which require disclosure other than those already disclosured in these financial sti'ltements. 

46 Approval of financial statements 
The financial statements were approved by the board of directors of the Company on December 4, 2019. 

In terms of our report attached. 

For SRBC & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
leAl Finn Re?;istration Number: 324982EjE300003 

Bhitf<1.th NS 
Parbler 
Membership No:210934 

Mumbai, 
December 4, 2019 

(DIN,00007467) 
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L J \..(-{2,·{ t(, 

Bijay Kumar 
Deputy Manaltin~ Director 
(DIN,07262627) 
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N Srinivasan 
Director 
(DIN,00123338) 

Mumbili 
December 4, 2019 

Vineet Nayyar 
Vice Chairman 

... ~ 
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Director 
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Director 
(DIN,00110996) 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Infrastructure Leasing & Financial Services Limited 

Report on audit of standalone Ind AS financial statements 

Disclaimer of Opinion 
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12th Floor. The Ruby 
29 Senapati Bapat Marg 
DMar (West) 
Mumbai - 400028, India 

Tel:+912268198000 

We were engaged to audit the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Infrastructure Leasing & 
Financial Services Limited (the "Company"), which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as at March 3 I, 20 I 9, 
the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including the Other Comprehensive Income, the standalone Cash 
Flow Statement and the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company. 
Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion and Material 
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern sections of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient 
apPl'Opriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the accompanying standalone lnd AS 
financial statements. 

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion 

The malters in Paragraphs I to 9 below should be read with Note 1.2 to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS 
financial statements which discusses certain key events of the year including reconstitution of the board of 
directors of the Company effective October 1,2018 and Note J.3 to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS 
financial statements regarding the resolution process followed by the board of directors in relation to the 
Company's operations, as well as the relevant notes referred to hereinbelow. 

t. (a) As mentioned in Note 1.6 to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements, on January I, 
2019, the Company and two of its subsidiaries (IL&FS Transportation Networks Limited and IL&FS 
Financial Services Limited) received orders from the National Company Law Tribunal for the reopening and 
recasting of their accounts in respect of financial years 2013-14 to 2017-18, under Section 130 of the 
Companies Act 20 I 3. Such process of reopening and recasting of prior years' accounts is currently in 
progress. 

(b) As mentioned in Note 1.7 to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements, the Board of 
Directors have initiated a third-party forensic examination of various matters for the period April 2013 to 
September 20 18, which is currently ongoing. 

(c) As mentioned in Note 1.8 to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements, management is 
in the process of reconciling claims received with its books of account 

(d) As mentioned in Note 1.18 to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements, there are ongoing 
investigations by various regulatory authorities and agencies on the Company. 

Consequently, the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements do not include any possible 
adjustments arising from the aforesaid matters, including to the extent these may affect prior period 
comparatives presented therein, 

2, As mentioned in Note 1.9 to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements, pending 
management's determination of the financial and other consequences ofthe litigations stated in the said note, 
no adjustments have been made to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements in this regard. 

3. As mentioned in Note I. IOta the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements, as at March 3 I, 
20 I 9, the Company has made provisions of Rs 95,429.0 I million, Rs 2,072.35 million and Rs 96,804.75 

respectively towards provisions for loans given to and receivables ITom, and impairment of 
Wilment,rin, its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and recorded net loss on fair value changes of 
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Rs 26,692.99 million on financial assets measured at fair value though profit and loss. The Company does 
not currently have the necessary and/or complete information to support cash flow based tests over its 
investments, and assumptions for certain aspects of the expected credit loss model in respect of loans and 
receivables and accordingly, management has recorded full provision for the balances indicated in that note, 
which does not meet the requirements of the relevant lnd-AS standards in entirety. 

4. As mentioned in Note 1.11 to the accompanying standalone lnd-AS financial statements, the Company is in 
the process of reconciling the completeness and status of financial guarantees extended by it to group 
companies in the period prior to September 30, 2018, pending which, the Company has not recognised any 
resultant liabilities, if any, in the accompanying standalone lnd-AS financial statements. Consequently, the 
accompanying standalone lnd-AS financial statements do not include any possible adjustments in this regard. 

5. In view of the reasons mentioned more fully in Note I.l2 to the accompanying standalone lnd-AS financial 
statements, the Company has not accounted for contractual interest income from its subsidiaries, associates 
and joint ventures (of Rs 7,379.80 million on a gross basis) and contractually payable finance costs on 
borrowings (ofRs 6,925.85 million, excluding penal I other interest and charges), for the period from October 
16, 2018 to March 31,2019. In our opinion, the Company would be required to account for such interest 
income and interest expenses, and the related assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2019. 

6. As mentioned in Note 1.13 to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements, pending completion 
of audit of financial statements of various subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures as at and for the year 
ended March 31, 2019, and/or the related completion of the inter-company balances reconciliation process, 
we are unable to comment on the adjustments that may be required and the consequential effects on the 
disclosures of related party transactions and balances in Note 44, to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS 
financial statements. 

7, We have not received audit evidence as follow&; 

a) Reconciliation of differences with one bank mentioned in Note 1.14 to the accompanying standalone 
lnd-AS financial statements aggregating Rs 2,412.80 million, which management believes represents an 
unauthorised adjustment made by the bank in the Company's bank account (included in note 3 and 4 to 
the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements). 

b) Unreconciled differences in bank reconciliation statementslother borrowings including direct debits by 
banks aggregating Rs 1,485.85 million, which in management's view is primarily arising out of claims 
for penal interest, which are in the process of being reconciled by the Company. 

c) Direct confirmations ITom three banks in respect of derivatives (including the mark to market amount) 
of Rs 337.79 million in note 5 to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements. 

Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the consequential effects of the above, on the accompanying 
standalone lnd-AS financial statements. 

8. The Company does not have information for certain disclosures including, but not limited to, those required 
by Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act"), Ind-AS, and certain regulations of the Reserve Bank 
of India and related rules, as and forthe reasons mentioned in Note !.IS and Note 1.4.2 to the accompanying 
standalone Ind-AS financial statements. 

9. As mentioned in Note I. I 6 to the accompanying standalone lnd-AS financial statements, the Company is not 
in compliance with certain requirements / provisions of applicable laws and regulations as more fully stated 
in that note. Pending final determination by management ofthe financial and other consequences arising from 
such non-compliances, no adjustments have been made to the accompanying standalone lnd-AS financial 
statements. 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

We refer to Note 1.19 to the accompanying standalone lnd-AS financial statements. The Company has incurred a 
loss (including other comprehensive income) of Rs 225,272.53 million for the year ended March 31, 2019 and 

"" .. c,,,-,,ms net liabilities of Rs 169,351.57 million as at March 31, 2019. The Company has also suffered consistent 
since September 2018, as a result of which the Company's ability to raise funds 
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has been substantially impaired, with normal business operations being substantially curtailed. These conditions, 
along with other matters set forth in that note, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast 
significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 

Other Information 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Directors' Report, but does not include the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind-AS Financial 
Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect 
to the preparation of the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the accompanying standalone lnd-AS financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis ofaccQunting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind-AS Financial Statements 

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Company's standalone Ind-AS financial statements in accordance 
with Standards on Auditing and to issue an auditor's report. However, because of the matters described in the 
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion and Matedal Uncertainty Related to Going Concern sections of our report, we 
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the 
accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. 

Reporting on comparatives in case of first Ind-AS financial statements 

The transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1,2017 included in standalone lnd-AS financial statements, 
_.a£e based on the statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) 

'/ ~it ~:~Ies, 2006 audited by the predecessor auditor of the Company whose report for the year ended March 31,2017 'r '~(, ~'" \~-
~;,~ :)¥\'k, ;f?~~ '''l 1,',1) ,,~.t.: f! , p, R .-
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dated April 26, 2017 expressed an unmodified opinion on those standalone financial statements, and have been 
restated to comply with Ind-AS. We were engaged to audit the adjustments made to the previously issued said 
financial information prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 to comply 
with Ind-AS. In view of the matters reported in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section above, we are unable 
to comment whether any further Ind-AS adjustments are required to the balances in respect of the transition date 
balance as at April 1,2017 and the comparatives for the year ended March 31,2018. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1, As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (the "Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms ofsub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure I" a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by section 143(3) oftheAct, we report that: 

(a) We have sought all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit, but to the extent described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion 
section above, were unable to obtain such information; 

(b) Proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books, except to the extent stated in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section 
above; 

(c) Read with the matters stated in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, the standalone 
Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Other Comprehensive 
Income), the standalone Cash Flow Statement and standalone Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with 
by this repOlt are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) Due to the possible effects of the matters described in the Basisfor Disclaimer of Opinion section above, 
we are unable to state whether the aforesaid standalone Ind-AS financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 

(e) The matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion and Material Uncertainty Related to Going 
Concern sections above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company; 

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(g) The reservations relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as 
stated in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section above; 

(h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
with reference to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in !lAnnexure 211 to this report. That report 
expresses a disclaimer of opinion on the Company's internal controls over financial reporting for the 
reasons stated therein; 

(i) Due to the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our 
auditor's report on the financia! statements, we are unable to comment on whether the managerial 
remuneration paid to its erstwhile managerial personnel during the period from April 1, 2018 to 
September 30, 2018 has been paid / provided in accordance with the provisions of section 197 ofthe Act, 
read with Schedule V thereto. Managerial remuneration in respect of managerial personnel appointed 
subsequent to October I, 2018 has been paid / provided by the Company in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 197 of the Act, read with Schedule V thereto, read with the relevant regulatory 
commu' . in this regard. 
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U) Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section 
above, with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

T The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
standalone Ind-AS financial statements - Refer Note 32 and Note 1.20 to the accompanying 
standalone Ind-AS financial statements; 

iL The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses; and 

ilL There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

ForS R B C&CO LLP 
ChaJtered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 

per Bharath N S 
Partner 
Membership No.: 210934 
UDIN: 19210934AAAADY3110 
Place of Signature: Mumbai 
Date: December 4,2019 
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Annexure I referred to in paragraph I under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements" of our report of even date 

Rei Ihth,sti'tlct\1re .Be'il§iil:~:&tF'lilancfillFStli'\iiCeS 'Littiif<i&ftlle'IGi>mp!iri1iWl 

(i) In respect of fixed assets: 

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of fixed assets. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the fixed assets were 
physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a phased programme of 
verification which, in our opinion) provides reasonable having regard to the size of the Company 
and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, we 
repolt that the title deeds of freehold land and building are held in the name of the Company as at 
March 31, 2019 except in respect of one property with a net book value Rs 1.8 million where the 
title deed was not produced for our verification and in respect of which we are unable to comment. 

(ii) The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under 
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted loans, secured or 
unsecured to companies covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 
2013. According to the information and explanations given to us: 

(a) Pending the outcome of the investigations stated in paragraphs I(b) and I(d) of the Basis of 
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our auditor's report on the financial statements, we are unable to 
report on whether the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, prima facie, prejudicial 
to the Companyts interest; 

(b) In respect of loans granted to companies covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has not been 
as stipulated; and 

(c) The Company has a sum aggregating Rs 5,407.29 million which are overdue for more than ninety 
days from companies covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 
2013. In our opinion and having regard to the matters mentioned in Note 1.2 and Note 1.3 to the 
accomPllllying standalone Ind-AS financial statements, reasonable steps have been taken by the 
Company for recovery of overdue amounts where possible. 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, considering 
the nature of the Company and that the Company is registered as a non-banking finance company to 
which the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable, reporting 
under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 
3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not in the business of sale of any goods. 
Therefore, in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(vii)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, sales-tax. service tax, 
value added tax, cess, tax deducted at source and other statutory dues applicable to the Company have 
generally been regularly deposited with slight delay in a few instances. In respect of dues of goods and 
service tax the Company has not regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities and there have been 
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serious delays in large number of cases. The provisions relating to duty of custom and duty of excise are 
not applicable to the Company. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and except for the possible effects of the 
matter stated in paragraph 9 of the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our auditor's report on the 
financial statements, undisputed dues in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income­
tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess 
and other statutory dues which were outstanding as per the Company's books of account, at the year end, 
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable, are as follows: 

Name ofthe Nature of the Dues Amount(Rs. in Period to Due Date 
Statute mn unless which the 

otherwise amount 
stated) . relat.es 

Goods and service Goods and service 14.43 Nov2018to Various dates 
tax tax liability Mar20.l2 ....... ..... 

Income Tax Act Dividend 165.28 Jun2018 ' 12'Junc18 
Distribution Tax .. -.--,,--

, 
Labour Welfare LWF payment Rs 4830 * Jan 2018(0 . " 31-Jan-19 
Fund. Act Dec 2018 

.' -* represents absolute number 

(c) According to the records of the Company, and except for the possible effects of the matter stated in 
paragraph 9 of the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our auditor's report on the financial 
statements, the dues of income-tax, sales*tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax 
and cess on account of any dispute as per the Company's books of account, are as follows: 

. NameoTtbe siatute Nature of the 'Amount 'Period to which' Forum where the 
dues :,(Rs mn) 'the amount relates dispute is pending 

. Finance Act 
Income Tax Act I ncolne Tax 2' 

.TDS 

'CESTAT 
·T.rr . 2()n~2012 ·tIT(A) 

(viii) According to the information and explanations giYen by the management, the Company has delayed in 
repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks or government and dues to debenture 
holders during the year in respect of principal amounts of Rs 32,776.00 million (the delay in such 
repayments being between 5 and 217 days as at March 31,2019), and Rs 32,276.00 million of such dues 
were in arrears as on the balance sheet date. The lender wise details are tabulated as under: 

~-"Sr ·ParHc"lliiirs 
no 

Terml()alls /Commerdiifpapers I Inter­
cor orate de osits 

Ilnduslnd Bank Ltd 
2. 
3 

SmalUndustries DeveIO me.ntl:laJ1koOndiL 
Micro Units Development & Refinance Agency 
Limited. 

4 CreditSui,se AG 
5. Bank oOndia 
6 

Total amount of 
default as at 
balance sheet date 

6696.67 
45.00.00 
2,850.00 

260Mb 
2000.00 
2,000.00 

1500.00 
},OOO.OO 

Date of first 
default # 

10,Se -18 
27,Au -18 
17-Nov:18 . 

28-Se -18 
28-Se -18 
15-Jan-19 

30-$e-18 
17-Se,I.8 
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Sr , Pa-rtlculars Total amount of Date of first 
no default as at default # 

balance sheet date 
. (Rs~ .i.ll mn) # 

)0 Bandhan Bank .. L.im . .ite.d 900.00 28-Sep-18 
II Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency 700,00 29-0ct-18 

Limited 
J2 Puniab.l( SindB.ank ... 525,00 28-Seo-18. 
13 "BankofrvIaharashtra'" ... 400,00 30.Sep-18 
14 Central Bank "fIndia 375.00 30-Sep-18 
15 !ammu&KashmirBaiikCicl . 250.00 30-Sep-18 
16 Karnataka Bank Ltd 250.00 30-Sep-18 .. 
17 The SouthIndianRank Limited 250,ob 30-Sep,18 
18. State Bank of Bikaner & JaiRur 125,00 30-Sep-18 

.. 19 Asian.DevelopmentJlank_~ .. 120Al 17-Dec-18 
20 UtkarshSmall FinanceRank Limited ... 66,67 3.0-Sep-18 . 
21 . KredifilnstalfmrWiedeiiiufbau(Ktwy···· 55:13 30-Dec'18 

'21 TheUrilied'SlatesAgenc,/"foi'Intemaiiona) . 22.50 3 il-Sep-18 
Development (USAlD) Loan 
Debentures 

23 .. Total debentures 4,120:60 _Various ** 
Total 32276.00 

• Has been paid by Government of India to the lender, pursuant to a guarantee provided by the former 
.. Various dates between September 17,2018 and March 27, 2019 
# Amounts and date of first default are as per original terms of contractual agreements, Amounts are 
cumulative from the date of first default to March 31, 2019, and, represents principal only, and does not 
include interest, for reasons stated in Note 1.12 to the financial statements and paragraph 5 of the Basis 
for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our auditor's report of even date 

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance 
sheet, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer, hence 
this pan of clause (ix) is not commented upon. 

Further, we were not provided with all the information and explanation regarding utilisation of moneys 
raised prior to October I, 2018 by way of term loans, and accordingly we are unable to comment as to 
whether the moneys raised from such term loan have been utilized for the purposes for which they were 
obtained, No term loans were taken subsequent to October 1,2018, 

(x) As a consequence of the various matters resulting in the change in operational status ofthe Company, as 
more fully described in Note 1.2 and Note 1.3 to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial 
statements, and having regard to and pending final outcome of the various matters described in the Basis 
for Disclaimer of Opinion section above, based upon the audit procedures performed by us and according 
to the information and explanations given by the management, we are unable to report on fraud by the 
Company or on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company during the year. 

(xi) Due to the possible effects ofthe matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our 
auditor's repoli on the financial statements, we are unable to comment on whether the managerial 
remuneration paid to its erstwhile managerial personnel during the period from April 1, 2018 to 
September 3.0, 2018 has been paid I provided in accordance with the provisions of section 197 ofthe Act, 
read with Schedule V thereto, Managerial remuneration in respect of managerial personnel appointed 
subsequent to October 1, 2018 has been paid I provided by the Company in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 197 of the Act, read with Schedule V thereto, read with the relevant regulatory 
communications in this regard. 

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the 
order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 
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(xiii) As discussed in paragraph 6 of the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our auditor's report on the 
accompanying standalone lnd-AS financial statements, pending completion of audit of financial 
statements of various subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures as at and for the year ended March 31) 
2019, andlor the related completion of the inter-company balances reconciliation processes, the Company 
has not recorded any adjustments that may be required in this regard, Accordingly, (a) we are unable to 
comment if the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of 
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the period from April 1,2018 to September 30, 2018; and (b) with 
respect of the period from October 1, 2018 to March 31,2019, except for the possible effects ofthe matter 
stated in paragraph 6 of the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our auditors' report on the financial 
statements, we report that the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 
and Section 188 of the Companies Act 2013, Further, in view of the matter stated in paragraph 8 of the 
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our auditor's report on the.l financial statements, we are unable 
to comment as to whether details disclosed in the notes to the accompanying standalone lnd-AS financial 
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards are adequate in respect of the transactions 
from April I, 2018 to September 30, 2018 and as a consequence on the balance as of March 3 1,2019, 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance 
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 
partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence not commented upon, 

(xv) Due to the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our 
auditor's report on the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements, we are unable to comment 
on whether the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the period from 
April I, 2018 to September 30, 2018, Further, we report that the Company has not entered into any non­
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of 
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the period from October I, 2018 to March 31, 2019, 

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company is registered 
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, without considering the consequential 
effects, if any, of the matter mentioned in Note 1.16 to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial 
statements, 

For S R B C & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
leAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 

per Bharath N S 
Partner 
Membership No,: 210934 
UDIN: 19210934AAAADY3110 
Place of Signature: Mumbai 
Date: December 4, 2019 
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S 'R.B C & CD Lt..' 
Chartered Accountants 

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INFRASTRUCTURE LEASING & FINANCIAL 
SERVICES LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We were engaged to audit the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Infrastructure Leasing & 
Financial Services Limited (the "Company") as of March 31, 2019, in conjunction with our audit of the 
accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit ofInternal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 
with reference to the standalone Ind-AS financial statements based on our audit. We were engaged to audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 20 J 3, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. 

Because of the material and pervasive nature of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion 
section in our auditor's report on the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements, we were not able to 
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an opinion on internal financial controls over 
financial reporting with reference to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements of the Company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Standalone 
Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting princip les. A company's internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures ofthe 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Disclaimer of Opinion 

Consequent to the various matters mentioned in Note 1.2 to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial 
statements) which have inter alia, resulted in the matters stated in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of 
our auditor's report on the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements, the normal business operations 
of the Company as they existed until September 30, 2018 have ceased since, and the New Board has undertaken 

__ =-_~tain steps as mentioned in that note, to continue the current operations of the Company. 
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S R.B C & CO ~J.,:p 
Chartered Accountants 

However, in view of the material and pervasive nature of the matters described in our Basis for Disclaimer of 
Opinion section of our auditor's report on the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements of the 
Company, we are unable to determine if the Company has established adequate internal financial control over 
financial reporting and whether such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 3 I, 20 I 9. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference 
to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements. 

Explanatory paragraph 

We were engaged to audit, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, the accompanying standalone Ind-AS 
financial statements of Infrastructure Leasing & Financial Services Limited, which comprise the standalone 
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2019, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including the statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the standalone Cash Flow Statement and the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. We 
have considered the disclaimer of opinion repOited above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit 
tests applied in our audit of the March 3 I, 20 I 9 standalone Ind-AS financial statements of Infrastructure Leasing 
& Financial Services Limited and this report affects our report dated December 4, 2019 which expresses a 
disclaimer of opinion on those standalone Ind-AS financial statements. 

For S R B C & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 

per Bharath N S 
Partner 
Membership No.: 210934 
UDIN: 19210934AAAADY3 I 10 
Place of Signature: Mumbai 
Date: December 4, 2019 
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The Shareholders 
Infrastructure Leasing & Financial SCI'vices Limited 

Your Directors are presenting the Thirty Second Boards' Report along with the Audited Accounts for 

the year ended March 31,2019. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS: 
(Rs in million) 

For the Year Ended March 31, 2019 2018 

Total Revenue 8,236.97 17,341.26 

Less: Tota! Expenses and Provisions (233,059.80) (16,403.17) 

Profit! (Loss) before Tax (224,822.83) 938.09 

Less: Provision for Taxation (617.39) 2,379.18 

Profit I (Loss) after Tax (225,440.22) 3,317.27 

Other Comprehensive Income 167.69 17.63 

Total Comprehensive Income (225,272.53) 3,334.90 

Appl"opriations from Profit after Tax: 

Special Reserve I - 1,168.64 

Special Reserve n - 22.00 

Dividend - 545.71 

Contingency Reserve - -
Preference Share Premium Redemption Account - 563.73 

Balance of Profit I (Loss) (225,440.22) 1,017.19 

* Financials restated to reflect the balances as per [ND AS 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind 

AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20 15 (as amended from time 
to time) and other l'eievant provisions oftlle Companies Act, 20 J 3. 

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company had prepared its 
Financial Statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian 
GAAP or previous GAAP). 

As a result of the various events during the financial year 2018-19 which are more fully discussed in 
the notes to the Financial Statements, there was significant uncertainty around the recoverable amounts 
and valuations, and related provisions for impairment, ofthe various investments made and loans given 

by the Company to its group companies. 

Your Board in consultation with the operating management has assessed the realizable value of the 
assets considering the security available and management estimate in realization of those securities. 

Your Board has followed a conservative approach by making prudent provisions to the best of its 
judgement with a view to ensure that the Financial Statements reflect the asset values close to the 

recoverable values. Accordingly, the Board has made a provision on account of credit fisk and 
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impairment of investments, resulting into loss during the year. The actual realisable values may differ 

from the estimates assumed. 

DIVIDEND: 

As your Company has been defaulting in servicing its debt obligations since August 25, 2018 and that 

a resolution process is being implemented foryaur Company in proceedings pending before the Hon'ble 

National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench ("NCLT") and the Hon'ble National Company Law 

Appellate Tribunal ("NCLAT") under Sections 241-242 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company 

is unable to pay dividend to preference and equity shareholders until the satisfaction of all its dues. 

Considering the magnitude of loss incurred in the financial year, the Board does not recommend any 

dividend for the year ended March 31, 2019. 

SHARE CAPITAL: 

As at March 31, 2019, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 16,045 mn, Issued Share 

Capital is Rs. 9,859.27 mn and Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital ofRs. 9,831.53 mn, comprising 

of 128,403,276 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid-up, 1,133,000 Non-Convertible Redeemable 

Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 7,500 each fully paid up and 5,000,000 Non-Convertible 

Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares ofRs 10 each fully paid up. There is no change in the Issued, 

Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company during the year under review. 

SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS: 

The Company is a Core Investment Company registered with the Reserve Bank ofIndia and is a holding 

company for diversified businesses in segments such as Transportation, Energy, Financial Services, 
Real Estate etc. Each of these businesses are conducted through various (direct and indirect) 

subsidiaries, joint venture entities, jointly controlled operations and associate companies both in India 

and in overseas jurisdictions ("IL&FS Group"). 

The Company reported defaults on its borrowing obligations during the financial year 20 18-19. Further, 

the credit rating of the Company was downgraded to 'D' (lowest grade) in September 2018. 

Pursuant to a repo.t filed by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai ("RoC") under Section 208 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide its Order dated September 30, 
2018, directed that the affairs of the Company be investigated by the Serious Fraud Investigation Office 

("SFIO"). SFIO commenced investigation of the affairs of the Company and submitted an interim report 

under Section 212(11) ofthe Companies Act, 2013, on November 30, 2018. 

On October 01,2018 Union ofIndia ("UO!,,) (acting through the MCA) filed a petition with Hon'ble 

NCL T seeking immediate suspension of the Board of Directors of the Company and appointment of a 

new Board of Directors, amongst others, on the grounds of mismanagement and compromise in 

corporate governance norms and risk management by the erstwhile Board of the Company and that the 

affairs of the Company being conducted in a manner prejudicial to the public interest. The Hon'ble 
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NCL T vide its Order dated October 0 I, 2018 allowed the UOl's petition and appointment of six new 
Directors to the Board of the Company on the recommendations of the UOl (collectively known as the 
"New Board") being Mr. Uday Kotak, Mr. Vineet Nayyar, Mr. G N Bajpai (who subsequently resigned 
from the Board of the Company on October 30, 2018), Mr. G C Chaturvedi, Dr. Malini Shankar and 
Mr. Nand Kishore. The Han'ble NCLT noted, that a governance and management change was required 
to bring back the IL&FS Group from financial collapse and in this regard, the New Board may attempt 
to restore the financial solvency ofthe IL&FS Group. Further, the Hon'ble NCLT vide its Order dated 

October 03,2018 appointed ofMr. C S Rajan as a Director of the Company and vide its Order dated 
December 21,2018 appointed Mr. Bijay Kumar and Mr. N Srinivasan also as Directors of the Company. 
Mr. CS Rajan, Mr. Bijay Kumar and Mr. N. Srinivasan form palt of the New Board. 

The New Board of Directors at its meeting held on October 04, 20 IS elected Mr. Uday Kotak as the 
Non-Executive Chairman afthe Company and Mr. Vineet Nayyar was appointed as the Vice Chairman 
& Managing Director of the Company. Further, the New Board at its meeting held on December 24, 
20 IS appointed Mr. Bijay Kumar as the Deputy Managing Director oft.he Company. Consequent to the 
appointment of Mr. C S Rajan as the Managing Director of the Company with effect from April 03, 
2019, Mr. Vineet Nayyar holds the position of the Executive Vice Chairman of the Company. 

Additionally, the Hon 'ble NCLA T passed an Order on October 15, 20 IS (the "Interim Order") 

pursuant to which it stayed various proceedings and actions against the Company and its Group 
Companies (until further Orders). The Interim Order enabled value preservation ofthe IL&FS Group's 

assets and provides time to the New Board to evaluate, prepare and implement a resolution plan for the 
Company and its group companies in an orderly manner, keeping in mind the interest of the various 
stakeholders. 

The New Board has been working on the Resolution Plan of the IL&FS Group, which has mu Itiple, 

complex and diverse entities under varied operating structures. At the time of its appointment, the New 
Board was directed by the Hon'ble NCLT to submit a roadmap for resolution of the IL&FS Group 
within a month and accordingly, the New Board submitted the First Progress Report to the MCA on 
October 30, 20lS (the "First Progress Report") setting out the way forward for the IL&FS Group 

(which in turn was filed by the MCA with the Hon'ble NCL T on October 31, 201 S). In the First Progress 
Report, the New Board, based on its initial assessment, amongst others outlined: (i) key challenges 
facing the IL&FS Group; and (ii) options which were and could be considered for resolution of the 
IL&FS Group. 

Taking into account the various challenges facing the IL&FS Group, including the complexity posed 
by its structure, width of operating business, scale, group-wide levels of leverage, public interest, 
financial stability, legality, various stakeholder interests (including interests of the joint venture 
partners) and commercial feasibility, the New Board has put in place a resolution framework to have a 
timely resolution process, which is fair and transparent and incorporates well established legal 
principles and seeks to address concerns of all stakeholders ofthe IL&FS Group. The implementation 
of the resolution framework is presently under way and the Company has initiated the divestment 
processes in relation to various group entities. The Company being a Holding Company and registered 
as a Core Investment Company (CIC) with RBI, depends on its group entities to continue operating as 
a going concern. 

The assessment of the New Board, based on analysis of the current position of and challenges facing 
the IL&FS group, is that an Asset Level Resolution Approach serves the best interest of all stakeholders 
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to achieve final resolution. Additionally, NCLAT vide its orders dated February 04, 201 9 and February 

I 1,20 I 9 has directed the appointment of Hon'ble Justice D K Jain (Retd Justice ofthe Supreme Court 

of India) to supervise the resolution process for the IL&FS group. 

In view of the resignations of Directors in a majority of your Company's subsidiaries post October 01, 

2018 and challenges faced in terms of appointment of Directors in those companies, members of the 

New Board have been appointed as Nominee Directors on Boards of major subsidiaries. The operations 

of other subsidiaries of your Company are managed through the appointment of senior officials of the 

IL&FS Group on their respective Boards with a view to have uniformity and co-ordination as part of 

actions towards the resolution of the IL&FS Group. 

The New Board has submitted five Progress Reports from time to time to the Union of India who in 

turn has filed them with the NCLT. These Progress Reports are hosted on the Company's website as 

well as on the website ofBSE Limited. 

The Company is classified as a "Red" entity, indicating that it is not able to meet all obligations 

(financial and operational) including payment obligations to its senior secured financial creditors. 

Accordingly, under the resolution mechanism, the Company is permitted to make only those payments 

necessary to maintain and preserve a going concern status. 

RISK AND COMPLIANCE FRAMEWORK: 

Your Company had a risk management framework and compliance systems including the risk 

management policy adopted by the erstwhile management. Given the circumstances in which the New 

Board was appointed on October 0 1,20 I 8, the New Board has reviewed and put in place a revised and 

updated risk management framework which takes into account the complexity of IL&FS Group 

structure and the situation with respect to operations/liquidity management. It has also implemented 

certain key initiatives to protect interests of the stakeholders in order to mitigate the risks being faced 

by the Company (and the IL&FS Group), which are as follows: 

• Engagement of expelt agencies to assist the New Board in the ongoing resolution of the Company 

and of the IL&FS Group. External Resolution Consultant, Financial and Transaction Advisors, 

Claims Management Advisor and Legal Advisors have been appointed. 

• Constitution of an 'Operating Committee' to work on a day to day basis to ensure co-ordination 

among group companies and maintain uniformity in the decisions taken across the IL&FS Group. 

• Constitution of an 'Asset Sale Committee' to undertake all necessary actions and take decisions in 

relation to the asset monetization process (being undertaken in line with the Resolution Framework 

RepoI1). 

• Introduction of new position, Chief Operating Officer ("COO") by appointing Mr. N Sivaraman. 

The COO is responsible for oversight of day to day operations of the IL&FS Group and providing 

hands-on leadership for and oversight of the asset monetization efforts. The COO is part of the 
Operating Committee and the Asset Sa!e Committee. 

• Institution of a group-wide payment protocol. One of the most pressing challenges which the New 

Board faced immediately upon taking over was the significant liquidity constrains being faced by 

the IL&FS Group, including the fact that (as highlighted in the First Report) there was no suitably 
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empowered central financial control function that maintained information and accuracy at the 
group level. With an aim to manage liquidity, ensuring statutory compliance, preserving value and 

maintaining 'going concern' status, the New Board, based on discussions with the External 
Resolution Consultant instituted a payment protocol for the entire TL&FS Group ("Payment 
Protocol"). The Payment Protocol ensures that no selective payment is made to creditors which 
could prejudice interests of other stakeholders (Le. the risk of being classified as a 'preferential 
payment'). The External Resolution Consultant has been assisting the New Board in periodically 
monitoring and reviewing the liquidity position of key entities in the IL&FS Group, including 
conducting the following key oversight functions: 

(i) Preparing monthly cash budget: Preparation of a budget by the respective entity's 

management based on forecast of collections from customers, prioritization of payments 
based On the Payment Protocol and cash available, actual cash flows in the previous period 

etc.; 

(ii) Reviewing operational issues: Discussion and mitigation of key operational issues faced 
by the entities, such as delay in collections from customers, stoppage of supply by specific 
vendors! service providers, termination of projects, lenders not permitting 'going concern' 
payments etc.; 

(iii) Tracking key liquidity parameters: Periodic collation and review of cash balances across 
entities, amount of cash deployed in interest bearing instruments, tracking overdue salaries 

/ statutory liabilities etc.; and 

(iv) Identifying avenues for cash generation! preservation: Identification of entities with 
significant cash gap and determining focus areas for the respective managements such as 

following up on claims! old receivables, releasing funds lien marked by lenders, cost 
reduction, sale of non-core assets etc. 

The External Resolution Consultant also conducted a cash flow solvency test based on a '12 month 
look-forward' testing period ("Testing Period") based on which 150 entities (incorporated in India) of 
the IL&FS Group have been classified into one of the following categories: 

(a) "Green" entities Le. those entities where there is no payment default/overdues subsisting 

currently and cash flows to be generated by that entity in the Testing Period from its operations 
and available cash balances are sufficient to meet all payment obligations of that entity (both 
operational and financial, secured as well as unsecured) as and when such payment obligations 
fall due in the Testing Period. These entities also do not rely upon other IL&FS Group entities 
for any financial support to service its debt obligations (financial and operational); 

(b) "Amber" entities i.e. those entities which are not able to meet all their respective obligations 

(financial and operational) during the Testing Period but can only meet operational payment 
obligations and payment obligations to senior secured financial creditors (financial creditors 
whose financial debt is secured by a first charge over the assets of the relevant IL&FS Group 
entity) during the Testing Period [II; and 

For the purposes of determining the categorization as "Amber", in addition to ability of making payment to senior secured 
creditors of such companies as and when they fall due, the cash flow sufficiency to meet current operational payments (post 
September 30,2018) has been considered 
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(c) "Red" entities i.e. those entities which cannot meet their respective payment obligations 

towards even senior secured financial creditors as and when they fall due in the Testing 
Period!2] 

Basis the order of the NCLAT dated February 11,2019 under which Green entities were permitted to 

to make payments of all their current obligations (both financial and operational) as per the scheduled 

repayment terms the Payment Protocol was amended. However, IL&FS Group entities categorized as 
"Amber" and "Red" are permitted to make only payments necessary to maintain and preserve the 'going 

concern' status. 

ADEQUACY QF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria, established by the Company, considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofIndia ("ICAI"). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively, for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of fmuds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

The norma! business operations of the Company as they existed until September 30, 2018 have ceased 
since, and the New Board has undertaken certain steps to continue the current operations of the 
Company and is focused on achieving resolution as mandated by NCL T. The Company had laid down 
internal financial controls in respect of the period from October 01,2018, from which date the members 
of the New Board have been appointed and such internal financial controls were adequate and were 
operating effectively as at year end, except that due to the prevailing conditions under which the 
Company is operating currently, and having regard to the matters stated. Additional!y, controls have 
also been established for monitoring and J·elease of payments. 

Where the relevant "Red" lL&FS Group entity does not have senior secured financial debt, the unsecured (operational and 
financial) debt of that lL&FS Group Entity has been considered, which also cannot be fully paid as and when it faUs due 
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DEVELOPMENTS IN SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES: 

lECCL ri 

- visibility on the recovery or loa~s I 
Services business and TFIN to its borrowers - which 
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Services 
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BSE (with IL&FS holding 50.42% in llML) and monetization process with target date for receiving 

is Private Equity Fund Manager which manages binding bids as Janual)' 2020 

SEBI registered funds investing across sectors 
and has tiB date raised over US$ 3.5 bn from 
global and domestic investors 

HML is also registered with SEBT as a 'portfolio 
manager'. Its subsidiaries and associates also 
manage/advise various equity and debt funds. 

was I 

IL&FS currently holding 8L2% of its share 
capital) and provides a range of capital market 

related services induding depository, custodial, 

professional clearing, credit portfolio 
management and back office operations for 

small and mid-sized brokers and financial 

institutions. 
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inter alia in view of the ongoing investigation by 

the Securities and Exchange Board of lndia 
("SEBI")and Economic Ofknces Wing 

("EOW"), New Delhi in relation to certain mutual 

fund units provided as collateral for trades (in 

options contracts) conducted by Allied Financia! 

Services Private Limited, a client ofISSL 
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, 
BSE. IL&FS holds 73.2% of its share capital. It transportation vertical 
also has global operations in jurisdictions of 
Spain, USA, Africa, UAE and China (through 
its subsidiaries). 

The resolution for ITNL can be attempted after: (i) 
either share sale proceeds are realized by lTNL (in 
the event equity value is derived pursuant to 

ITNL is also present in other areas such as mass resolution of operating assets held by such 
rapid transport system, urban transportation, entities); and (Ii) the resolution of assets/ 

horder check post, etc companies held by such entities is completed I 
(pursuant to which certain payments may be i 
received by such entity from the financial bid 
amount (to the extent such entity is a creditor of 
the relevant operating asset). 

In response to RFP for sale of 14 operational road 

assets, binding bids were received for 10 assets 
After evaluating these Bids, the New Board 
decided to refer bids for 5 assets to the Committee 
of Creditors CCOC") of the respective entities. 

The Board has also in-principle agreed to refer the 
balance 9 assets to an Infrastructure Investment 
Trust (lnvIT) w be set up under the relevant SEBT 
Regulations. The divestment as wel! as InvlT set 
up process is currently on-going 



O..-:wlopment 
Company 
Limited 
C'IEDCL") 

rEDeL, the flagship Company of the Energy 

vertical of the IL&FS Group. 
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can 
0) either share sale proceeds are realized by 
rEDCL (in the event equity value is derived 

pursuant to resolution of operating assets held by 
IEDCL has a portfolio of over 2900 MW of 

such entities); and (ii) the resolution of assets! 
operational power projects and various projects 

in the conventional as weI! as the renewable 

energy segment which are operational and under 

development either directly or through its 
subsidiaries I joint ventures. 

18 

companies held by JEDCL is completed (pursuant 
to which certain payments may be received by j 
such entity from the financial bid amount (to the 

extent such entity is a creditor of the relevant 

operating asset), 

The lL&FS Group has completed the sale process 

of its 51% stake, held through lL&FS Wi11d 
Energy Limited (IWEL) in 7 operating ""ind 
power SPY with 874 MW of generation capacity 
("Wind SPVs") to ORTX Corporation of Japan 
(ORIX)_ With this development, ORIX, which 

previously owned 49% in each ofthc 7 SPVs now 

has 100% ownership. Hon'ble NCLT, Mumbai 1 

Bench had approved the sale on August 28, 2019. 

Pursuant to the sale of the Wind SPVs, IWEL has 
received Rs. 5,928_75 mn as equity vaille; and 

IEDCL has received Rs_ 2,115.79 mn (along with 
interest 
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As part of the IL&FS Group asset monetization 
process and in !ine with its Resolution Framework 

submitted to NCL T, a publicly solicited sale 
process for IL&FS Wind Power Services Ltd 
(IWPSL), in which TEDeL has 100% ownership, 

was launched by the New Board on November 29, 
2018. IWPSL has developed asset management 
expertise for the Wind SPVs. No binding bid was 

received for IWPSL pursuant to the publicly 
solicited bid process OR IX has expressed its 

interest to acquire at an equity value of Rs. 60,5 

mn. In line with the Resolution Framework, 

IEDCL caBed for its first CDC meeting On 

November J, 2019 to consider ORIX's oHer for 

lWPSL 

i j , 

capital) is the Holding Company of the (including real estate assets) 
Maritime vertical and was incorporated in 2006 

The resolution for IMICL can be attempted after" 
as a separate vertical for undertaking and 
expanding the maritime and logistics initiatives 
oflhe lL&FS Group as a sponsor and developer. 
IMTCL's project portfolio is diversified across 
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(i) either share sale proceeds are feal ized by 
IMICL (in the event equity value is derived 

pursuant to resolution of operating assets held by 
the resolution of assets! 



7 

Environmental 

Infrastructure 

& Services 
Limited 
("IEISL") 

Township & 
Urban Assets 
Limited 

("ITllAL") 

Management 

and 
Environmental 

Services 

Development 

Red 

Red 

i prOjects 
that include multipurpose berths, tank terminals, 

integrated maritime complex with a shipyard, in 

India and the UAE. 

capital), has established a waste management 
plattorm_ 

Currently, lEISL has 36 plants managing an 

aggregate capacity of 16.400 TPD and has 
demonstrated capabilities across various 
segments in the Integrated Waste Management 
(IWM) space 

focuses on creating infrastructure to support 
urban habitation i.e. development of integrated 
townships, affordable housing, sports and social 
infrastructure. IL&FS and the Government of 
Gujarat have envisaged development of an 
International Financial Service Centre named 
Gujarat International Finance Tec~City 
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to which certain payments may be received by 
IMICL from the financial bid amount (to the 
extent IMICL is a creditor of the relevant 
operating asset) 

monetizing IL&FS' stake in JEISL Stage I 

consists of receipt of a binding bid under a process 

akin to a 'Swiss Challenge' process and Stage 21 
consists ofa publicly solicited bid process inviting 

competing bids. 

A binding bid under Stage 1 was received on 

October 22, 2019. Stage 2 comprising of the 
publicly solicited bid process will be initiated 

shortly. 

, , 
mfrastructure vertical, and IS m the proce~~ of i 
monetlzmg Its assets (lilcludlllg real estate assets) 

The resolution for ITUAL can bc attempted after: 
(i) either share sale proceeds are realized by 
ITUAL (in the event equity value is derived 
pursuant to resolution of operating assets held by 
lTUAL); and (ii) the resolution of assets! 

held ITUAL is completed (purSll<lIll 



Engineering 

and 
Construction 

Company 

Limiled 

("lECCL") : 

Properties 

Limited 
(HCI'L): 

& 
Construction 

as a promoter 

capital) and 

development, 

management 

a 

holding 42.25% of the share 
is engaged in infi"astmcture 

construction and project 
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resolution mechanism. 

It is pertinent to note that the efforts and initiatives i 
of the New Board and the management has 

resulted in IECCL: (i) being converted from cash 

deficit to cash positive on an operational basis: lii) 

preserving value of approximately Rs 88.7 mn on 

account of realization of claims and pending 

receivables aggregating to approximately Rs 22 

mn; and (ii) securing release of bank guarantees 
for a value aggregating to Rs 66.7 nm, owing to ' 
completion! revival of its existing projects_ 

Efforts are currently being made to: (i) execute 

pending orders and collect old/ current 

receivables; (i1) revive projects that werc 

previously terminated; 

Company originally promoted by the Raju (aggregating to approximately 80%, held by 

family and the IL&FS Group was inducted as TL&FS, ITUAL and IECCL) in HCPL has been 1 
the of HPCL of an order 

21 



lndia Limited 

(formerly 
known as 

lL&FS 
Education & 
Technology 

Services 
Limited) 

Amber 

525 

I I i 
in School net India Limited (which would result in 

the indirect change in shareholding of stcp·do\-vil 

subsidiary ISDC and the business of ICDl), has 
been received on July 23, 2019. 

68.9% of its share capital), operates primarily in 

sectors relating to education, employability and 

employment op~ortunities. It has partnered with 

various governments to set up computer labs and 
through its subsidiaries also provides vocational 
traimng and commercially sustainable The Company is a Category I Company (as 

defined in the Resolution Framework Report). 
integrated solutions for development of micro, 
small and medium enterprises 

22 

Accordingly, a COC consisting of all financial 
creditors of the selling shareholder (in this case, 

IL&FS) was required to be constituted to consider 
the purchase offer. The first meeting of IL&FS 
coe was held on October 17, 2019, for seeking 
approval for the sale of lL&FS' stake In the 
Company, in the manner contemplated in the 
Resolution Framework Report. 

The highest financial bid value ("HI bid") for the 

sale of School net India Limited was approved by 
78A6% (by value) of the IL&FS Creditors' 
Committee members, which is in excess of the 
threshold that is stipulated in the Resolution 
Framework (i,e. 2/3rd (by value)) post 



Technologies 

Limited 
("TTL") 

(Iormerly 
kno\\'l1 as 

lL&FS 
Technologies 
Limited 

Asset 

Management 

Limited 
("llAML") 

Technology 
i i 

equity share capital), is focused on creating and 

enhancing customer experience through 
business process management, analytics, system 
integration and managed services. 

i 
IIML holds 86.6% of the share capital of 

IlAML). IIAML was set up in 2013 and is the 

asset manager of !L&FS Infrastructure Debt 
Fund_ 

23 
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Board. 

In accordance with the Resolution Framework, I 
post approval of the New Board, an application has 
been made to Justice (Retd.) DX. Jain, to seek his 

approval. Upon receipt of approval from Justice 

(Retd.) DK lain, an application would be made to 

the Hon'ble NCLT, for seeking its approval to 
consummate the aforesaid sale. 

i 
monetizing TL&FS' stake in TTL. Stage! consists 
of receipt ofa binding bid under a process abn to 

a 'Swiss Challenge' process and Stage 2 consiSls 
of a publicly solicited bid process inviting 

competing bids. 

i process 
launched and targeted date [01 receiving binding 
bid is lamml)1 2020. 



Limited 
("IWL") 

manages assets of approximately Rs. 2,200 

crore and has made investments in multiple 

portfolio companies under various sub~sectors 
ofthe infrastructure sector. 

holds 95% of its share 

capital), was incorporated in 2007 to focus on 

water and \ovater effluent treatment projects and 

has expertise in project development across bulk 

water supply, waste water recycling, 
desalination, operation & maintenance of water 

utilities. 

Apart from IWL, IL&FS has set up lL&FS 
Paradip Refinery Water Limited ("IPRWL") to 

develop the bulk water supply project on BOOT 

basis for TOCL's 15 MMTPA RefineI)' being set 

up at Paradip, Odisha. 

24 

entity i I 

services to IPRWL, Chhotagovindpur & Bagbera 

Drinking Water Supply Project Limited and 

Hubballi Dharwad Water Supply Project Limited. 

Resolution of this entity can happen post closure/ 

divestment of the aforementioned 3 entities 
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PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES. ASSOCIATES & JOINT VENTURES: 

The Company has been facing capacity issues due to loss of key employees while meeting the need 

for servicing information requirements and providing clarifications to mUltiple investigating agencies, 
providing information to enable the ongoing asset monetization and restructuring activities and meeting 
'going concern' requirements. Further, challenges are being faced by the respective Subsidiaries in 
terms of valuation of underlying assets, inadequate number of Directors on the Boards of a few 
companies, dealing with casual vacancy of Statutory Auditors and extended timelines for finalizing and 

adopting audited financial statements. In view afthe above, the Financial Statements of the Subsidiaries 
Companies will not be available before the Annual General Meeting of the Company. Accordingly the 
Company is unable to provide its Consolidated Financial Statement and salient features of the Financial 
Statements of the Company)s Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures in Form AOC-I as required under Section 

129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. An application is 
being made to the competent authority seeking an exemption for the Company from presenting its 
consolidated financial statement. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

The CSR Policy of the Company was approved by the erstwhile Board at its meeting held on December 
09.2014. The CSR Policy is effective from April 01, 2014. Financial year 2019 is the fifth year of 

operationalization of the CSR mandate under the Companies Act) 2013. 

Details of the CSR expenditure during the first six months of the year under review are given III 

Annexure I enclosed to the report. 

Pursuant to the appointment of the New Board and mandate provided, the focus has been on the 

Resolution Framework. Since your Company has been categorized as "Red Entity" no further amount 
has been spent towards CSR activities. 

VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 

As per the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company formulated and 
adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism for employees and Directors of the Company 
in order to report instances of unethical behavior) violation of Company's Code of Conduct. A copy of 
the Whistle Blower Policy is available on the Company's website: https:llwww.ilfsindia.com/investors/ 

Three complaints were received via the Whistle Blower Mechanism in the year under review and have 
been duly addressed by the Company. 

To report any suspected or confirmed incident offraudl misconduct, the aggrieved person can reach 
the Ombudsman at: ombudsperson@i1fsindia.com 
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FIXED DEPOSITS: 

Your Company has been registered as Systemically Important Non~Deposit Accepting Core Investment 
Company (CIC). The Regulatory Framework for CTC in terms of RBI guidelines prohibitslrestricts the 
CICs from raising funds by way of public deposits. Accordingly, your Company has not accepted any 
public deposits nor intends to raise any money by way of public deposits. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 
OF THE COMPANY: 

Pursuant to defaults in obligations in terms of servicing its debts, the credit rating of the Company has 
been downgraded to "D" rating during the year. Consequent to losses incurred during the year, the net 
worth of tile Company has substantially eroded. The Group Companies have availed third party limits 
carved out of the Company's limits from banks for letter of credit, performance guarantees and other 
financial guarantees facilities (collectively referred to as 'third party guarantees'). These third party 

guarantees have been issued by the Company's bankers on behalf of such Group Companies in the 
norma! course of business after due credit assessments. The Company has also received counter 
guarantees from respective Group Companies against such third party guarantees. 

The Company has prepared its financial statements on a 'going concern' basis, based on its plans for 

resolution discussed above. 

BOARD AND COMMITTEES: 

A. DIRECTORS: 

(1) Change in Boa,"d of Directors: 

(a) National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench ("NCLT") vide Order dated October 0 I, 
2018 suspended the following Directors from the Board of the Company with immediate effect: 

• Mr. Had Sankaran, Vice Chairman & Managing Director 

• Mr. Arun K Saha, Joint Managing Director & CEO 

• Mr. Ravindra Chandra Bhargava 

• Mr. Sunil Behari Mathur 

• Mr. Michael Pinto 

• Mr. Jaithirth Rao 

• Ms. Rina Kamath 

(b) Mr. Sanjeev Doshi (DlN: 02237584), Nominee Director of Abu Dhabi Investment Authority 

resigned as Nominee Director of the Company with effect from October 01,2018. 

(c) Mr. B K Singal (DlN: 07753602) Nominee Director of the Central Bank of India resigned as 

Nominee Director ofthe Company with effect from October 01, 2018. 

(d) Mr. C Venkat Nageshwar (DlN: 07234179) Nominee Director of the State Bank of India 
resigned as Nominee Director of the Company with effect from October 01,2018. 
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(e) Mr. Praveen Kumar Molri (DIN: 07810173), Nominee Director ofLlC resigned as Nominee 
Director of the Company with effect from October 01, 2018. 

(f) Mr. Kiyoshi Fushitani (DIN: 01965162), was appointed as a Nominee Director of ORIX 
Corporation, Japan with effect from May 30, 2018 and resigned with effect from October 01, 
2018. 

(g) Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe (DIN: 07763966), Resident Representative, ORIX Corporation, Japan 
was appointed as an Alternate Director to Mr Kiyoshi Fushitani, Nominee Director of the 
Company with effect from May 30, 2018. As a result of resignation ofMr. Kiyoshi Fushitani, 
Mr. Kiyokazu lshinabe cessed to an Alternate Director with effect from October 0 1,2018. 

(h) Mr. Harukazu Yamaguchi (DIN: 03535391), Nominee Director of ORIX Corporation, Japan 

resigned with effect from October 0 I , 2018. 

(i) Mr. lkuo Nakamura, ORIX Corporation, Japan cessed to an Alternate Director to Mr. Harukazu 
Yamaguchi with effect from October 01, 2018. 

OJ Mr. Hemant Bhargava (DIN: 01922717), Nominee Director ofLlC resigned as the Director of 
the Company with effect from September 28,2018. 

(k) Mr. Yoshihiko Miyauchi (DIN: 00991171) Nominee Director of ORIX Corporation, Japan 
resigned as a Director of the Company with effect from May 30, 2018. 

(I) Mr. Ravi Parthasarathy (DIN: 00002392) resigned as the Non-Executive Chairman and 

Director of the Company with effect from July 21,2018. 

(m) Further, NCLT vide various Orders has appointed the following as the Board of Directors of 
the Company: 

• Mr. Uday Kotak (w.e.f. October 0 1,2018) 

• Mr. Vineet Nayyar (w.e.f. October 0 1,2018) 

• Mr. G C Chaturvedi (w.e.f. October 01, 2018) 

• Dr. Malini Shankar (w.e.f. October 01, 2018) 

• Mr. Nand Kishore (w.e.f. October 01,2018) 

• Mr. G N Bajpai (w.e.f. October 01,2018) 

• Mr. C S Rajan (w.e.f. October 03, 2018) 

• Mr. Natrajan Srinivasan (w.e.f. December 21,2018) 

• Mr. Bijay Kumar (w.e.f. December 21,2018) 

(n) Mr. G N Bajpai resigned as a Director of the Company with effect from October 30, 2018. 

All Independent Directors as on September 30, 2018 had provided the declarations that they meet 
the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Further, pursuant an application filed by the MCA, the Hon'ble NCLT vide its Order dated April 
26,2019 (in Misc. Application 1054/2019 in c.P. No. 3638/2018) has held that since members of 

the New Board have been appointed by the Hon'ble NCL T, there is no requirement to appoint 
independent director under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the moratorium period 
granted pursuant to the Interim Order passed by the Han'ble NCLAT. In view of the same, the 
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Company has not appointed any Independent Directors under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

(2) Managerial Remuneration Policy: 

The erstwhile Management of the Company had adopted "Managerial Remuneration Policy" and 

defined a Selection Criteria for appointment of Directors, qualification, positive attributes, 
independence of the Directors including remuneration payable and other matters as prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013. The Managerial Remuneration Policy and Selection Criteria for 
Directors is available on the website of the Company: https:llwww.ilf:<;india.com/investors/ 

(3) Board Evaluation: 

As per the requirement of Schedule IV, Section 134 and other applicable provIsions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, the erstwhile Management your Company had 
laid down a Performance Assessment Process and Parameters for the Members of the Board. The 
evaluation of the performance of the individual Directors, Committees and the Board was noted at 

the Meeting of the erstwhile Board of Directors of the Company held on May 30, 2018. 

B. BOARD MEETINGS: 

Nineteen Board Meetings were held during the year under review, of which FOUiteen Board 
Meetings were held post October 01, 2018 by the New Board. 

C. COMMITTEES OF THE COMPANY: 

1. StatutOl"v Committees of The Board: 

Pursuant to the Order of the Hon'ble NCL T dated October 0 I, 2018 all the then Directors were 
suspended from the Board of the Company with immediate effect. This resulted in them ceasing to 
be the members of a!l the Committees. Consequently, the committees were reconstituted by 
inclusion of the New Board members appointed by the Hon'ble NCLT. 

(al Audit Committee: 

Erstwhile the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company comprised of the 

following members as on September 29, 2018, Mr. R C Bhargava, Chairman, Mr. Michael 
Pinto, Mr. S B Mathur and Mr. Arun Saha. 

Pursuant to the NCLT Order dated October 01, 2018 all the members of the Committee were 

suspended from the Board of the Company with immediate effect. Subsequently, the Audit 
Committee was reconstituted on October 04, 2018 with the following Directors as members 
viz. Mr. Nand Kishore, Chairman, Mr. C S Rajan and Dr. Malini Shankar. Subsequently, the 
Audit Committee was re-constituted on December 24,2018 by including Mr. N Srinivasan. 
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FUlther, Mr. C S Rajan stepped down from the Audit Committee on April 03,2019, Currently, 

the Committee comprises of Mr. Nand Kishore, Chairman, Dr Malini Shankar and Mr. N 

Srinivasan. 

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had Nine Meetings of which Seven 

Meetings were held by the newly constituted Audit Committee members post October 0 1,2018, 

The duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee aloe as defined under provisions of tile 

Companies Act, 2013, 

(b) Nomination & Remuneration Committee ("NRC"): 

Erstwhile the Nomination Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company 

comprised of the foHowing members as on September 29, 2018, Mr. S B Mathur, Chairman, 

Mr. Michael Pinto and Mr. Hari Sankaran as Members of the Committee. 

Pursuant to the NCLT Order dated October 01, 2018 all the members of the Committee were 

suspended from the Board ofthe Company with immediate effect Subsequently, the NRC was 

reconstituted on October 04, 2018 with the following Directors as members viz. Mr. G C 

Chaturvedi, Chairman, Mr. C S Rajan and Mr. Uday Kotak. 

Further, Mr. C S Rajan stepped down from the NRC on April 03, 2019, Currently the 

Committee comprises of Mr. G C Chaturvedi, Chairman, Mr. Uday Kotak and Mr. Nand 

Kishore. 

During the year under review, the NRC had Seven Meetings of which Four Meetings were held 

by the newly constituted NRC members post October 0 1,2018, 

The responsibilities of the NRC, inter-alia, include: 

(i) to identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in 

Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the 

Board, their appointment and/or removal and shall carry out evaluation of every Director's 

performance; 
(ii) to fOl'mulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence 

of Directors and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the 

Directors, KMP and other employees; and 

(iii) to endorse the methodology and distribution of Performance Related Pay to the employees 

of the Company, 

(e) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee: 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has constituted 

a CSR Committee, The Committee comprised of Ms, Rina Kamath, Chairman, Mr. Hari 

Sankaran, Mr, Arun K Saha and Mr. Jaithitth Rao. Pursuant to the NCLT Order dated October 

01, 2018 all the members of the Committee were suspended from the Board of the Company 

with immediate effect. Subsequently, the CSR Committee was reconstituted on October 04, 

2018 with the following Directors as members viz, the Committee comprised of Dr. Malini 
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Shankar, Chairman, Mr. Vineet Nayyar and Mr. G N Bajpai. Subsequently, on November 14, 
2018 the Committee was reconstituted to include Mr. Nand Kishore in place ofMr. G N Bajpai. 

FUither, the Committee was reconstituted consequent to Mr. C S Rajan stepping down from the 
CSR Committee on April 03, 2019. Currently, the CSR Committee comprises of Dr. Malini 
Shankar. Chairman, Mr. Vineet Nayyar and Mr. N Srinivasan. 

During the year under review, the erstwhile CSR Committee met once. 

The responsibilities of CSR Committee include to: 

0) frame and recommend to the Board of Directors, a CSR Policy which shall indicate the 

activities to be undertaken by the Company; 
(ii) recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities specified; 

(iii) establish a monitoring mechanism including the mandatory MIS! Reporting formalities; 
Ov) ensure the build-up of a robust pipeline of CSR initiatives to avoid any carry forward of 

fund allocations; 
(v) formalise the operational structure ofthe CSR Program. 

(d) Stakeholder's' Relationship Committee ("SRC") : 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has constituted 
a Stakeholders' Relationship Committee ("SRC"). The Committee comprised of Mr. S B 

Mathur, Chairman, Mr. Amn K Saha, and Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe. Pursuant to the NCL T Order 
dated October 01, 2018 all the members of the Committee were suspended from the Board of 
the Company with immediate effect. Subsequently, the SRC was reconstituted on October 04, 

2018 with the following Directors as members viz. Mr. G N Bajpai, Chairman, and Mr. G C 

Chaturvedi as member of the New Board appointed by the NCL T. Subsequently, on November 
14,2018 SRC was reconstituted to include Mr. Vineet Nayyar in place ofMr. G N Bajpai. 

Currently, the Committee comprises ofMr. G C Chaturvedi, Chairman and Mr. Vineet Nayyar. 

The Committee is responsible for resolving stakeholder's grievances, ifany. No meetings were 

held during the year under review. 

(e) Asset Liability Management C'ALM") Committee: 

The ALM Committee had been constituted as per RBI directives and comprised ofMr. Amn K 
Saha, Mr. R C Bawa, Mr. M M Wagle, Mr. Milind Patel and Mr. Sujoy Das. Subsequently, the 

ALM Committee was reconstituted on November 15, 2018 with the following members viz. 
Mr. M M Wagle and Mr. Surjeet Wagh. 

FU!iher. ALM Committee was reconstituted on May 22,2019 with the following members viz. 

Mr. M M Wagle, Mr. Deepak Pareekh, Mr. Neerav Kapasi and Mr. Manish Aga!. Currently the 
ALM Committee comprises ofMr. M M Wagle, Mr. Neerav Kapasi and Mr. Manish Aga!. 

The Committee is responsible for ensuring compliance with the requirements as specified by 

the RBI from time to time. During the year under review, the erstwhile ALM Committee met 
twice. 
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(f) Internal Complaints Committee (ICC): 

Pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013 (SHWW Act), the Company has formulated and adopted "The Sexual 
Harassment of Woman at the Workplace Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal Policy". 

Further, as required under the SHWW Act, the Company has constituted an Internal Complaints 
Committee comprising of Senior Executives and one independent Member. The Committee is 
responsible for ensuring compliance in terms of provisions ofSHWW Act, from time to time. 

2. Non Statutory Committees: 

The New Board is being assisted by various committees constituted from time to time to deal with 

specific tasks inter-alia including the following Committees. 

(a) Asset Sale Committee: 

The New Board had constituted an Asset Sale Committee on April 16,2019 comprising ofMr. 
Vineet Nayyar, Chairman, Mr. C S Rajan, Mr. Bijay Kumar and Mr. N Sivaraman to consider 

and decide on matters pertaining to sale, divestment and monetization of assets of the Company 
including its direct and indirect interests in Group entities and/or it assets, division(s), 

undertaking(s), business(es), subsidiaty companies, joint ventures, through a fair and 
transparent process in the manner as contemplated under the Resolution Framework Report 
subject to the final approvals of the Board, Justice (Retd.) D.K. Jain and other requisite 

approvals. 

(b) Operating Committee (OpCo): 

The New Board constituted a "Core Operating Committee" on October 12,2018 comprising of 
Mr. Vineet Nayyar, Chairman, Mr. Kaushik Modak, Me, Ashwani Kumar, Mr. Dilip Bhatia and 
Mr. TV Raghunath. Subsequently, the Committee was reconstituted on December 24,2018 by 
including Mr. Bijay Kumar and Mr. N Sivaraman. 

FU11her, the Committee was reconstituted on April 03,2019 by including Mr. CS Rajan. 

The Committee was renamed to "Operating Committee" on February 12,2019. 

(c) Empowe,-ed Committee on Restructuring: 

An "Empowered Committee on "Restructuring" was constituted on June 28, 2019 comprising 

of Me, N Srinivasan, Chairman, Mr. Vineet Nayyar, Mr. C S Rajan and Mr, BUay Kumar. 

The Committee is assisted and supported by Mr. N Sivaraman in terms of conceptualization, 

structuring, evaluation, consideration and providing the requisite support in taking forward the 
actions with respect to the restructuring proposals as required. 
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(d) Standing Committee for Road Projects: 

The New Board of Directors appointed by NCL T has constituted the "Standing Committee for 

Road Projects" on July 24, 2019 comprising of Mr. G C Chaturvedi, Chairman, Mr. Vineet 

Nayyar and Mr. C S Rajan. The Committee is assisted and supported by Mr. Dilip Bhatia. 

The rationale for forming the Committee was to finalise and agree for settlement of claims with 

authorities such as NHAII NHIDCLI MoRTH for incomplete road projects, where the counter 

party is represented in the form of state or a state related authority. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES & INVESTMENTS: 

The Company is registered as a Systemically Important Non~Deposit Accepting Core Investment 

Company (CIC-ND-ST), engaged in the activities of investing in and lending to the group companies. 

Hence the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, except Section 186(1), are not 

applicable and hence the details thereof are not disclosed. 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

In terms of provisions of Section 203 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, the following are the Key Managerial 

Personnel (KMP) ofthe Company: 

• Mr. Vineet Nayyar, Managing Director (from October 01,2018 to April 02,2019) 

• Mr. C S Rajan, Managing Director (from April 03,2019) 

• Mr Maharudra M Wagle, Group Chief Financial Officer 

• Ms. Varsha Sawant, Senior Vice President & Company Secretary (upto March 10, 2019) 

• Mr. Shekhar Prabhudesai, Company Secretary (from March 11, 2019) 

• Mr Hari Sankaran, Vice Chairman & Managing Director (suspended by NCLT/rom October 01, 
2018) 

• Mr Arun K Saha, Joint Managing Director & CEO (sv.spended by NCLT/rom October 01,2018) 
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CHANGES IN GROUP COMPANIES: 

Pursuant Rules 8(5) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 20 I 4 as amended from time to time, the 

following changes have occurred to the list of Group Companies during the year under review: 

S Name of the Company Type of Date from which the relationship 

No Relation Established on 

I lL&FS Capital Advisors Limited' Subsidiary -
2 lL&FS Renewable Energy Limited * Subsidiary -
3 lorabat Shillong Expressway Limited Subsidiary August 16,20 I 8 

4 Shmjah General Services LLC Subsidiary -
5 IL&FS Engineering & Construction Subsidiary April 01, 2018 

Company Limited 

6 Dehradun Integrated Arena Limited Indirect May 23, 2018 

Subsidiary 

7 Sri nagar Sonamarg Tunnelway Indirect September 29, 20 I 8 

Limited Subsidiary 

8 Jharkhand e-Governance Solutions & Joint -
Services Limited @ Venture 

9 Karnataka Enterprise Solutions Joint -
Limited Venture 

# The Companies have filed an application for Voluntary Liquidation. 
* Merged with lEDCL April 20, 2018. 

Ceased on 

-
-
-

August 09, 20 I 8 

-

-

-

-

July 10, 2018 

@ The Company has filed an application for stick-off the name with MCA under Fast Track Exit 
scheme. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

It should be noted that the nature of related party transactions undertaken during the year, prior to 

October 01, 2018 under the erstwhile management, are under review as part of various internal and 

external investigations that have been initiated. Therefore, pending such investigations, the Company 

is unable to confirm the completeness of the related party transactions and whether some of these were 

undertaken at an arm's length basis and/or in the ordinary course of business. Hence, disclosure of 

particulars of contracts I arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in 

sub-section (I) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the period prior to October 01, 2018, 

have not been included for the year under review. In view of the above, the Company is unable to 

provide the disclosures in Form AOC-2. 

The erstwhile Management had formulated a Policy for Related Party Transactions (RPT), which was 

reviewed and recommended by the then Audit Committee and approved by the erstwhile Board. The 
RPT Policy is available on the website of the Company: https:llwww.ilfsindia.com/investors/. 
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EMPLOYEES: 

The total number of employees in your Company as on March 31, 2019 stood at IIG as compared to 

134 employees as on March 31, 20 18. Further, the total number of employees at group level as on March 

31,2019 stood at 4,331 as compared to 5,579 employees as on September 30, 2018. 

The New Board places on record it's appreciation for all the employees ofthe Group for their sustained 

efforts, dedication and hard work during the year. 

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION: 

The information required pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule, 5 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended from 

time to time, is enclosed as Annexure II to the Directors' Report. 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO: 

The particulars regarding expenditure in foreign exchange is as follows: 

(Rs in million) 

Particulars 2019 2018 

Interest & Commitment Charges 98.71 158.85 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

Since the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, the other particulars as per Rule 8(3) of 

the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, are not applicable. 

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT: 

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as 'prescribed under the provisions of Section 

148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable for the business activities carried by the 

Company. 
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AUDITORS: 

(1) STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

Mis SRBC & Co LLP (SRBC), Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (leAl Registration No.324982EI E300003) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company for a term of 5 years (i,e. from FY 2018 to FY 2022) in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 26, 2017. In accordance 
with the Companies Amendment Act, 2017, effective May 7, 201 S by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MeA), the appointment of Statutory Auditors is not 

required to be ratified at every Annual General Meeting 

The Management Representation on the qualifications! observations/ remarks ofStatulOlY Auditor pertaining to year' ended March 3!, 2019 afC as under: 

Sr. No Qualificlltions Responses to Audit Qualifications / observations 

l. I Note 1.6 to the accompanying standalone InJ·AS financial statements, An order received from NCL T dated January 0 J, 2019 has allowed a petition 

on January I, 2019, the Company and two of its subsidiaries (lL&FS by the Union OfIndia for reopening of the books of accounts and recasting of 

Transportation Networks Limited ,nd IL&FS Financial Services the financial statements under Section 130 of the Companies Act for the five 

Limited) received orders from the National Company Law Tribunal for t1nancial years between 2013-14 to 2017-18 of IL&FS and its Subsidiaries 

the reopening and recasting of their accounts in respect of financial fFIN and ITNL. Accordingly, the NCLT has appointed firms to cany out the 

years 2013-14 to 2017-18, under Section 130 of the Companies Act fe-opening and recasting of financial statements which is under progress. The 

2013. Such process of reopening and recasting of prior years' accounts company will make the required adjustments once the recasting process is 

is currently in progress completed 

2. Note 1.7 to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements, The New Board, in January 2019, has initiated a forensic examination for the 

the Board of Directors have initiated a third~party forensic examination period from April 2013 to September 2018, in relation to certain companies of 

of various matters for the period April 2013 to September 20! 8, which the Group, and has appointed an independent third party fix performing the 

is currently ongoing forensic audit and to report their findings to the Ne'.v Board_ 



$1". No Qualiiications Responses to Audit Qualifications! observations 

3. Note 1_8 to the- accompanying standalone lnd-AS financial statements, Pursuant to the "Third Progress Report - Proposed Resolution Framework for 

I 
management is in the process of reconciling claims received with its the lL&FS Group" dated December 17, 2018 and the" Addendum to the Third 

books of account. Progress Repolt - Proposed Resolution Framework tor IL&FS Group" dated 

January 15, 2019 ("Resolution Framework Report") submitted by the 
Company to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Governmenl oflndia which, in 

turn, was filed with the Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribuna! 

("NCLAT"), the creditors of the Company were invited (via advertisement(s) 

dated May 22, 20 19) to submit their claims as at October 15,2018 with proof, 

on or before 05 June, 2019 (subsequently extended till Seplember 22, 2019) iO 

a Claims Management Advisor ("CMA ") appointed by the IL&FS group_ The 

amounts claimed by the financial and operational creditors are assessed for 

admission by the CMA. 

Management of the Company is in the process of reviewing such claims, and 

reconcili-ation of such claims with the corresponding amounts as per the 

Company's books of account. Having regard to the nature, volume and value 
of claims received, management is oftbe view that due process will need to be 

applied to all such claims, in order to finally determine the level of present and 

possible obligations that would need to be recognised by the Company as 
liabilities 

4. Note 1.18 to the accompanying standalone Ind~AS financial statements, The MCA, Government of India, has vide its letter dated October 0 I > 2018 
there are ongoing investigations by various regulatory authorities and initiated investigation by the Serious Fraud Investigation Office (SFIO) against 

agencies on the Company. IL&FS and its group companies under Section 212 ( I) of the Companies Act, 

2013. As a part of its investigation, SFTO has been seeking information from 
I the Company on an ongoing basis_ The investigation is in progress and the 

I Company is fully cooperating with the investigating agencies Further, 

I regulatOlY and law enforcement agencies namely RBI. Enforcement 
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Directorate (ED), National Financial Reporting Authority (NFRA) have 
initiated investigations against the Company and its group companies 

5. Note 1.9 to the accompanying standalone Ind~AS financial statements, As a result of the events up to September 30, 2018, there have been legal cases 
pending management's determination of the financial and other and suits files against the Company following the default of borrowings made 
consequences of the litigations stated in the said note, no adjustments by the Company, as described in that note. Further, the Company is undergoing 
have been made to the accompanying standalone Ind¥AS financial a resolution process under the order of the National Company Law Tribunal 
statements in this regard. ("NCLT"), pending which the management is in the process of making 

assessments and determinations as to liabilities, provisions and contingent 
liabilities. 

6. Note 1.10 to the accompanying standalone Ind~AS financial statements, As a result of the events during the financial year 2018~ 19, there is significant 
as at March 3 L 2019, the Company has made provisions of Rs uncertainty around the recoverable amounts and valuations, and related 
95,42901 million, Rs 2,07235 million and Rs 96,804.75 million provisions for impairment, of the loans given to, receivables ti'om, and 
respectively towards provisions for loans given to and receivables from, investments in, group companies, All group companies in India have been 
and impairment of investments in, its subsidiaries, associates and joint classified as "Red", "Amber" or "Green" categories, based on 12 months 
ventures and recorded net loss on fair value changes of Rs 26,692_99 solvency test. 
million on financial assets measured at fair ,·alue though profit and loss 

Management, in consultation with the New Board, has assessed and determined The Company does not currently have the necessary and/or complete 
information to support cash tlow based tests over its investments, and that the amounts of investments in entities classified as "Red" and "Amber" are 

assumptions for certain aspects of the expected credit loss mode! in not significantly recoverable. Similarly, the amounts of loans in to entities 

respect of loans and receivables and accordingly, management has classified as "Red" and "Amber" are not entirely recoverable. Management's 

recorded full provision tor the balances indicated in that note, which approach in this regard does not consider the requirements ofthe relevant Ind~ 

does not consider the requirements of the relevant Tnd-AS standards in AS standards in entirety as the Company does not presently have the necessary 

entirety andlor complete information to support cash flow based tests over its 
investments, and assumptions for certain aspects of the expected credit loss 
model in respect of loans and receivables. On this basis, provision has been 
made in respect of the balance of loans, receivables and investments, 
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aggregating Rs. 95,429.01 million, Rs. 2,07235 million and Rs 96,804.75 

million respectively, and recorded net loss on fair value changes of Rs. 

I 26,692.99 million on financial assets measured at fair value though profit and 

I loss, arising from transactions up to September 30, 2018, except in respcct of 

certain entities where security is available, and management expecls realization 

of those securities. In the view of the Company, the impairment provision made 

is prudent and represents the economic substance of the amounts recoverable. 

7. Note 1.11 to the accompanying standalone Ind~AS financial statements, The Company has issued financial guarantees to its group companies. 

the Company is in the process of reconciling the completeness and Management is in the process of reconciling the completeness and status or 

status of financial guarantees extended by it to group companies in the financial guarantees issued, devolved, claimed and recorded / to bc recorded in 

period prior to September 30, 2018, pending which, the Company has the books of account, including those guarantees in respect of which claims 

not recognised any resultant liabilities in the accompanying standalone have been received as part of the claims management process. 
fnd-AS financial statements, Tn the absence of sufficient appropriate 

audit evidence in this regard, we are unable to comment on the 

consequential effects thereof on the accompanying standalone Tnd-AS 
financial statements. 

8. Note 1.12 to the accompanying standalone Tnd~AS financial statements, Tn line with the affidavit filed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCN) 

the Company has not accounted for contractual interest income from its with the Hon'ble NCLAT on May 21, 2019, the cut-off date of October 15, 

subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (ofRs 7,379.80 million on a 2018 ("Cut-Off Date") \Vas proposed, on account of inter alia the tact that the 

gross basis) and contractually payable finance costs on bon'owings (of Hon'ble NCLAT had passed the Order on October 15,2018, which inler alia 

Rs 6,925.85 million, excluding penal J other interest and charges), for granted certain reliefs to the IL&FS group and also restricted certain coercive 

the period from October 16, 2018 to March 31, 2019. In our opinion, actions by the creditors of the IL&FS group_ I the Comp,ny would b, enquiend to ,,,ount fo' such in"enst inoom' nod 
In terms of the Resolution Framework Reports, the proposal made is that all mterest expenses, and the related assets and liabilities as at 

March 31, 2019 liabilities relating to the relevant TL&FS Group Entity, whether financial 

(induding interest, default interest, indemnity daims and additional charges), 



Sr. No Qualifications 

I , 
I 

I 

I , 
I 

9. As more fully discussed in Note 1.17, management is evaluating the 
consequential effects of the Reserve Bank of India's inspection of the 
Company \vjth reference the year ended March 31, 2018. The 
accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements do not include 
any possible adjustments arising from the consequential effects of such 
inspection. 
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operational debt (including interest, indemnity or other claims) as \vel! as 
statutory claims (including tax, employment and labour related claims), 
whether existing at or relating to a period after October 15,2018 (the Cut·Off 

Date, as explained in the previous paragraph) should not continue accruing_ 

Accordingly, management has: 

a) Recognised interest income for the year on loans made, oilly for the period 

up to October 15, 201 8. No such income has been recognised for the period 

from October 16, 2018 to March 31, 2019, which approximates Rs, 
7,379.80 million on a gross basis. 

b) Recognised finance costs on borrowings (including from third parties) lor 

the year, only for the period up to October !5, 20! 8. No such finance costs 

has been recognised tor the period from October !6, 2018 to March 31, 

20! 9, which approximates to Rs. 6,925.85 million 

The above amounts are based on contractually agreed terms, and exclude penal 

/ other interest and charges. Further, the above (a) and (b) are not applied to 

entities classified as "Green" category, ie, entities which afC in a position to 

honour their respective financial and operational liabilities. The abovc basis of" 

accounting is on the basis of the proposal made by the Company to NCLT 

The management " '" th, process evaluating the financial and other 

consequences arising out of inspection. Ho\\'ever, the Company has made 

provision on loans and investments as indicated in note 1 10 of accompanied 

financial statements 
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Sr. No Qualifications Responses to Audit Qualifications /obsCTvations 

10, Note!. 13 to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements, The Group has been facing capacity issues due to loss of key employees "vhile 
pending completion of audit or financial statements of various meeting the need for servicing information requirements and providing 

subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures as at and for the year ended clarifications to mUltiple investigating agencies, providing information to 

March 31. 2019, and/or the related completion of the inter-company enable the ongoing asset monetization and restructuring activities and meeting 

balances reconciliation process, we arc unable to comment on the < going concern' requirements .. Therefore, audited financial statements of 

adjustments that may be required and the consequential effects on the several subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the Company for the year 

disclosures of related party transactions and balances in Note 44, to the ended March 31, 2019, are not available, The Company is in the process of 

accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements. performing and completing the confirmation and reconciliation of inter-

company balances with its subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures_ 

II. I. We have not received audit evidence as follows: The Company has done extensive foHov,' up and will continue its etTorts to get 

0) Reconciliation of ditTerences with one bank discussed in Note J 14 
the requisite documents and confirmations. Also, the Company has written 

letters protesting any unilateral adjustments pending final outcome of 
to the accompanying standalone lnd-AS financial statements resolution and claim management process. Further, under the claims 
aggregating Rs. 2,41280 million, which management believes management process, these parties have already filed their claims and 
represents "" incorrect adjustment made by th, bank ;n th, accordingly, there is indirect acknowledgement available with the Company. 
Company's bank account (included ;n note 3 and 4 to the 

accompanying standalone Ind~AS financial statements). 

b) Unreconciled differences in bank reconciliation statements/other 

borrowings including direct debits by banks aggregating Rs 
1,485.85 million, which in management's view is primarily arising 

out of claims for penal interest, which are in the process of being 

reconciled by the Company. 

I c) Direct confirmations from three banks in respect of derivatives 

I 
(including the mark to market amount) ofRs. 337,79 million in note 

5 to the accompanying standalone Ind-AS financial statements 
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Sr. No Qualifications Responses to Audit Qualifications I observations 

Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the consequential cftbcts of 

the above, 00 the accompanying standalone rnd~AS financial 

statements. 

12. The Company docs not have information fm certain disclosures The Company has substantially curtailed its normal business operations, and is 

induding, but not limited to, those required by Schedule TIl of the currently engaged in the resolution process. It is not practically possible for 

Compunies Act, 2013 (the "Act"), Ind*AS, and celtuin regulations of the management to obtain the necessary infonnution required for making{i) certain 

Reserve Bank ofIndia and related rules, as and for the reasons discussed disclosures required by the financial reporting framework applicable to the 

in Note 1.15 and Note 1.4.2 to the accompanying standalone Ind~AS Company including, but not limited to, certain requirements ofSchedu1c ITT to 

I financial smtements the Companies Act, Ind~AS, and certain requirements of the RBT Act and 

Master Directions; and I or (ii) disclosures of corresponding figures for certain 

items where current year figures have been disclosed. 

13. Note 1 16 to the accompanying standalone Ind~AS financial statements, The Company is not in compliance with certain provisions I requirements of 

th, Company is oot ;0 compliance \\1th certain requirements I applicable laws aod regulations. These include certain requirements of 
provisions of applicable laws and regulations as more fully discussed in Companies Act, 2013, listing agreement entered into with the stock exchange. 

that note. Pending final determination by management of the financial and certain regulations of the Reserve Bank of India as applicable to the 

and other consequences arising from such nOli*compliances, 00 Company. 

adjustments have been made to the accompanying standalone Ind~AS 
Where the management has identified any non~compliance subsequent to financial statements. 

I September 30, 2018, these have been reported or are in the process of being 

I reported to the relevant regulator, and the Company intends to comply with the 
I necessary requirements or further directions at the earliest. 

The Management is in the process of evaluating the financial and other 

consequences arising from such non~compl iance "od of makillg a 
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comprehensive assessment of other non*compl iances, to determine their 

I 
financial, operating or other consequences 

14. Material Uncertainty Helated to Going Concern The Company and the IL&FS group, in general, are undergoing suhstantial 
financial stress as at March 31, 2019. A resolution process is being run by lhc 

We refer to Note 1.19 to the accompanying standalone Ind~AS financial New Board. The resolution plan seeks a transparent resolution keeping in mind 
statements. The Company has incurred a loss (including other larger public interest, financial stability, legality, stakeholders' interest and 
comprehensive income) ofRs 2,25,27251 million for the year ended commercial feasibility_ The resolution plan includes measure such as sale of 
March 31, 2019 and has net liabilities ofRs 1,69,351.52 million as at entities I assets wherever possible_ The Company is taking active steps to 
March 3!, 20 19. The Company has also suffered consistent do\\mgrades monetize its assets and is in discussions with multiple parties to sell its assets. 
in its credit ratings sinCe September 2018, as a result of which the The Company is committed to taking necessary steps to meet its financial 
Company's ability to raise funds has heen substantially impaired, with commitments to the extent possible. 
normal business operations being substantially curtailed_ These 
conditions, along with other matters set forth in that note, indicate the During the year, the Company has also engaged an independent third party as 

existence ofa material U11certainty that may cast significant doubt about External Resolution Consultants, to assess the liquidity at the Company and at 

the Company's ability to continue as a going concern group companies in India, As a result, 150 domestic companies in the lL&FS 
group have been classified into three categories, as explained in Note 1.3 to 
these standalone Ind~AS financial statements_ These classifications reflect the 
ability of the companies to pay their financial and operational creditors in 

I 
normal course of business, and are subject to periodic assessment and review 
by the management and the Board. Further, these results are being submitted to 
the NCLT, the last ofwhieh have been submitted on August 09, 2019 

The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is predicated upon 
its ability to monetize its assets, and restructure I settle its liabilities_ In view of 
actions that are currently underway, the accompanying financial statements 
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have been prepared on going concern basis based on cumulative impact of 

certain steps taken by the New Board. 

(2) SECRETARIAL AUDITORS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014 as amended from time to time, the Company has appointed MIs P Diwan & Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake rile 
Secretarial Audit or the Company for FY 2019. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is annexed as Annexure III. 

The Management Representation on the qual ificntions/ observations! remarks of Secretarial Auditor pCltaining to year ended March 31, 2019 are as under: 

s,'. No. Qualifications Responses to Audit Qualifications I Obscl'vations 

I The Company has not disclosed following decisions taken in the Board Pursuant to the Order dated October OJ, 2018 passed by the NCLT, the 
Meeting of erstwhile Directors to Stock Exchange and therefore the erstwhile Board was suspended and New Board was appointed. Considering 
Company has received Show Cause Notice from Securities Exchange that the observations pertain to the period prior to October 01, 201 8, the New 
Board of India ("SEBI") Board is not in a position to comment on the said observations. . Raising equity capita! by way of rights issue; and 

• Disinvestment plan to reduce the overall debt by Rs. 30,000 crores 

I and recapitalization of group companies to the extent of Rs. 5,000 
crores 

2 The erstwhile Director(s) have participated in Board Meeting and Audit 
Committee meeting through electronic mode wherein discussion of 
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approval of the Annual Financial Statement and Board's report where 
taken for which permission of Chairman was not obtained. 

3 The erstwhile Director(s) who were interested in agenda conducted in 
Board Meetings were present during discussions and voting_ 

4 The erstwhile Board of Directors of the Company has not approved 
following in the Board meeting: 

.. Appointment ofScfutinizer 

.. Appointment of Agency for c¥voting 

.. Cut Offdatc ofe-voting 
.. Authority to Chairman or other to receive scrutinizer report 

5 Prior to October, 2018; the Company has not filed following e-forms 
with Ministry of Corporate Affairs: 

6 

I .. Form MGT-14 for Board Resolution passed in Board Meeting dated 
29.08.2018 w.r.t. Loan taken From State Bank of india, issue of 
Securities NCO upto Rs. 50000 Cr, issue of Shares on Rights and 
Approval of Directors Report as required under Section 117 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 . 

• Form GNL-2 for filing PAS-4 and PAS-5 for Tssue of NCO for series, I 2018-I-D. 

The Company has not filed following with Stock Exchange J RBi as 
appl icabJe: 

• Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit report for Quarter ended 
December, 2018 and March, 2019 as required under The 
Depositories Act, J 996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed 
thereunder; 

Responses to Audit Qualifications / Observations 

jit'I·,.cIfF 
'~#"'~~' 

The Company has not done certain filings as per the requirements of 

applicable laws and regulations . 

Most of these non-compliances relate or in turn depend upon the completion 

of audited financial statements for the respective period and these have not 

been complied with due to deJay in the process of completion of the saidl 
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• Compliance Certificate for ha!fyear ended March 2019 as required financial results. The Management has kept the respective regulalors I 
under Regulation 7(3) of The Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia informed with the reasons for the said non-compliances_ i 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. The Management is in the process of evaluating the financial and other 

· Unaudited Financial Results for the half year ended 30.09.2018 and consequences arising from such non-compliance "d of making a 
31.03.2019 as required under Regulation 52 of The Securities and comprehensive assessment of other non-compliances, to determine their 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obi 19atlons and Disclosure financial, operating or other implications, if any 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

· Undertaking as required under Regulation 57 of The Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

· ALM-I Return for the Quarter ended December, 201 8 and March, , 2019 

· ALM-2 Return for half year ended March, 2019. 

• NDSI-500_CR for the Quarter ended March, 20! 9 

• NBS-7 for all Quarters. 

1 • Returns under Foreign Direct Investment 

i 
7 The Company has not filed following with StOck Exchange / RBI within There was slight delay in tIling the Statement due w resource constraints 

prescribed time: 

• Statement ofTnvestor Grievance for the half year ended 31.03.2019 
as required under Regulation 13(4) of The Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

• Branch Info Returns of all Quarters 

• ALM Returns 

• NDSI_500_CR for Quarter ended June, September and December, 
2018 

· Quarterly Return on Overseas Investment foc Quarter ended 
September and December. 2018 
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. External Commercial Borrowings for month ended October, 2018 
and December, 2018. 

8 The appointment ofMr. N Sivaraman as Chief Operating Officer of the 
Compony by the Board of Directors was not routed through Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee. 

I 
9 The Company has not satisfied with the some of the conditions as 

prescribed under Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 20!6 such as: 

0) It holds not less than 90% of its net assets in the form of investment 

I 
in equity shares, preference shares, bonds, debentures, debt or loans 
in group companies; 

(ii) Its Investments in the equity shares (including instruments , compulsorily convertible into equity shares within a period not 
exceeding 10 years from the date of issue) in group companies 
constitute not less than 60% of its net assets as mentioned in clause 
(i) above; 
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Responses to Audit Qualifications / Observations I 
, 

. 

The need for the creation of position of COO \vas considered by the New 
Board in view of the unique and extraordinary situation faced by the IL&FS 
Group as a whole- Considering the complexity ofTL&FS Group structure and 
specific requirements of the said position, with a view to broad base the 
selection process in this respect, the decision was taken by the Board directly 
instead of routing the same through the Committee 

' The Company has made the substantial provision for Expected Credit Loss 
,nd impairment the investment based conservative approach. 

, 
on on i 

Accordingly, the Company has not been able to satisfY the conditions of the 

Core Investment Companies (Reserve bank) Directions 2016 for the year 

ended March 31, 2019. 

An annual certificate based on the audited financials for the year ended 

March 31, 2019 would be submitted to the Reserve Bank of India in due 

course_ 
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SIGNIFICANT AND M>\.TERIAL ORDFRS PASSED , , 

Sr. Parties / Case No. Adjudicating Date of Order Particulars 
No. AUlhodty 

1 Union of India, Ministry of National Company October 01, 2018 The Union of India, through Ministry of Company Affairs filed an 
Corporate Affairs Low Tribunal, application under Section 241(2} read with Section 242(2)(k) of the 

vs Mumbai Bench (read with orders Companies Act, 2013 ('Act") against IL&FS, before the Hon'ble 
infrastructure Leasing & dated October " National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench ("NeLl''') 
Financial Services Limited 2018 and December 
('IL&FS') ond 10 Ors. (C.P. 21,2018) 

The Hon'ble NeLT suspended the erstwhile Board of DirecLOrs of 

3638/2018) 
IL&FS and appointed a new Board of Directors ("New BO<lI"d") tor 

IL&FS. The Order, iflteralia, directed to take over the affairs oflL&FS 

immediately; conduct its business as per the Memorandum and Articles 

of Association of IL&FS and provisions of the Act; and submit a 

roadmap to the Hon'ble NCLT before Octobcr 31,20 J 8. 

It is pertinent that three more directors were appointed to the New I 

Board ofIL&FS vide orders dated October 03, 2018 and December 21, 

2019. 

2 Union of India, MinistlY of National Company October 05, 20 I 8 The Hon 'ble NCLT inter alia 
Corporate Affairs Law Tribunal, (i) directed that no action should be initiated against the New Board for 

vs Mumbai Bench the past actions and past wrongs of the suspended directors and officials 
Infrastructure Leasing & ofIL&FS without prior approval of the Hon'ble NCLT; and 
Financial Services Limited (ii) granted immunity to the directors on the New Board inler alia from 
('IL&FS') and 10 Ors. (MA disqualification! disability under Section 164 and 167 of the Companies 
1110 of2018 in c.P. No 3638 of Act, 2013 that may arise out of the acts of the suspended directors of 
2018) IL&FS 
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3 Union of India, Ministry of National Company October 09, 2018 The Hon'bJe NCLT passed an Order Inter alia holding that: I 

Corporate Affairs Law Tribunal, 
actions of the New Board done in good faith, in the interests oflL&FS, 1 

vs Mumbai Bench 
IL&FS and 10 Ors_ (MA J J 10 / 

various stakeholders including the public at large are protected which 

2018 in c.P. 3638 (MB) 12018) 
empowered the New Board to replace the direcwfs on the subsidiaries, 

jointwventures and associate companies of IL&FS as per existing 

provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association ofIL&FS 
Group Company 

4 Union ofIndia National Company October 15,2018 The Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal ("NCLAT") 
vs Law Appellate granted interim stay on, amongst others, coercive creditor and other 
IL&FS and Drs. (Company Tribunal, New action against IL&FS and its group companies 
Appeal (AT) no. 346 of2018) Delhi 
With lL&FS 

vs 

Union of India (Company Appeal 

(AT) no. 347 of2018) 

5 Union ofIndia National Company January 01. 2019 The Hon'ble NeLl' Ordered the reopening and recasting of books of 
Vs Law Tribunal, accounts oflL&FS and two other subsidiary companies ofIL&FS i.e., 
lL&FS and 2 Drs. (CP Mmnbai Bench IFIN and JTNL for (he past 5 financial years under Section 130(1)(ii) 
450612018) of the Act on the basis that there \.vas mismanagement in the affairs of 

IL&FS and the two other entities. 

It is pertinent to note that this Order was upheld on appeal before the i 
Hon'hle NCLAT v;de its Oed,,' doted Janu",y 31,20 J 9 as we1l as Ihe I 
Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its judgment dated .lune 4, 2019. 
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6 Union ofindia National Company February 11, 2019 The Hen'ble NCLAT appointed (in accordance with this Order and an 

vs Law Appellate Order dated February 04, 2019) Justice D. K. Jain (Retd.) to supervise 

IL&FS and Ors. (Company Tribunal, New and oversee the resolution process ofIL&FS and its group companies. 
Appeal (AT) no. 3460f2018) Delhi 

The Hon'ble NCLAT recorded the names of69 Indian IL&FS Group 

Entities which were classified into "Green", "Amber" and "Red" 
'categories based on the 12 month cash flow based solvency test which 

was conducted by the External Resolution Consultant, details of which 

were submitted to the NCLAT vide affidavit dated Februmy 11,2019. 

The Hon'ble NCLAT also excluded all offshore entities of the lL&FS 
Group fi·om the purview ofthe interim stay granted on coercive creditor 

and other action vide the Order dated October 15, 20 I 8 passed by the 

Hon'ble NCLA T. However, it was clarified that the resolution for those 1 

Offshore Group Entities may be taken up by the New Board under the 

supervision of the Hon'ble Justice (Retd.) O.K. Jain. 

I 
By this Order, the Hon'ble NCLAT also pennitted all "Green" Entities 

of the IL&FS Group to service their debt obligations as per scheduled 

repayment. It was further clarifIed that the resolution of such "Green" 

Entities should be within the 'Resolution Framework' which was 

placed before the Hon'ble NCLAT vide an affidavit dated Janual)' 25. 

20! 9 filed by the Dol, and subject to the supervision of the Hon'ble 

Justice (Retd.) O.K. Jain i 

7 Union of India, Minist!), of National Company April 26, 20! 9 The Hon'ble NCL T dispensed with the requirement under the Act for 
Corporate A Hairs Law Tribunal, the appointment of independent dircctors and womcn directors in 
vs Mumbai Bench various IL&FS group companies during the moratorium period 

lL&FS and Ors. (MA !576120!9, 

MA 157712019 and MA 
105412019 in C.P. 363812019) 
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8 Union oflndia National Company August 8, 20! 9 The Hon'ble NCLAT infer alia claritled that prior permission of 1 

vs Low Appellate Hon'ble Justice (Retd.) D. K_ Jain wou!d be required before seiling, 
IL&FS and Ors. (Company Tribunal, New transferring, dealing with or creating any third party right, title or 
Appeal (AT) no 346of2018) Delhi interest on any movable or immovable assets of the 82 "Red" entities 

It is peliillent to note that by way of an Order dated August 14,2019 

the Hon'ble NCLAT further clarified that the Order dated August 08, 
2019 shaH not affect Red Entities to pay salary of its Employeesl 

Workman, Officers and Operational creditors to keep the Red Entities 
going concern 

9 Union of India, Ministry of National Company August 9, 2019 Further to the Order dated January 01, 2019, the Hon'ble NCLT 
Corporate Affairs vs IL&FS and 2 Law Tribunal, appointed the following chartered accountants for fe-opening and 
Ors. (M.A No. 2699 of 2019 in Mumbai Bench recasting the accounts ofIL&FS, IFTN and lTNL: 
c.P. No. 4506 o(2018) a. For IL&FS and IFTN: Barkar & Mazumdar & Co; 

b. For lTNL: Mis. G.M. Kapadia & Co. 

FUl1her, the NCLT appointed the following chartered accountantS lor 
auditing the reopened and re-cast accounts oflL&FS, IFIN and ITNL: 

a. For IL&FS and IFIN: Mis. CNK Associates LLP; 

b. For lTNL: Mis M. M. Chitale & Co 

The NCLT and NCLAT has from time to time passed various other Orders to enable resolution of the IL&FS and its group companies which are uploaded in the 
their respective il'ebsiles. 
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ANNUAL RETURN: 

The Annual Return is available on the Company's website:https:llwww.ilfsindia.com/investors/ 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

In view of the fi"equent meetings of the New Board, the compliance with applicable Secretarial 
Standards has been met more in spirit than as a process. Accordingly, the compliance with the 

Secretarial Standards has been met on a best efforts basis. 

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS: 

There were no frauds reported by the Auditors under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act,2013, 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

L On October 0 I, 2018, based on a petition by Union of India ("UOI"), the erstwhile Board of 
Directors was suspended by the Hon'ble NCLT with immediate effect and New Board of 

Directors was appointed, The present Board of Directors (New Board) took charge of the 
Company and held the First Board Meeting on October 04, 2018. Accordingly, in respect of the 
period prior to October 0 1,2018, the Directors are unable to and do not confirm the compliance 
with the \·equirements of the provisions of the Companies Act 2013. 

2. The New Board has on a best effort basis and after considering the complexity of the operations, 
including challenges in implementing the resolution plan, put in place a framework for preparation 
of financial statements, selection of accounting policies, maintenance of accounting records and 

prevention and detection offrauds for periods subsequent to their appointment The Company has 
also faced several challenges in obtaining fiDanciai information and in being able to prepare its 
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 in view of first-time application oflND­

AS and severe resource and other constraints. Having regard to these matters, the Company has 
applied judgments and estimates for several matters on applying prudence and conservatism for 
accounting and has tried to reflect substance over form in respect of transactions and balances in 
order to derive the business sense from the transactions and events and to present them in a manner 
that best reflects their true essence based on current estimates. These estimates may change due 
to subsequent events and are subject to the internal and external investigations that have been 
initiated. 

3. The Company's accounts for the 5 financial years ended 2017-18 are undergoing the process of 
reopening and restatement, pursuant to an order of the NCL T. The SFIO and the New Board have 
also initiated their respective, independent investigations on various matters in relation to the 
Company, for past years and for the current financial year up to September 30, 2018, The possible 
outcomes of these matters and their effects are currently not determinable. 

4, Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, requires the Board of Directors to provide a 
statement to the Members of the Company in connection with maintenance of books, records, and 
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preparation of Annual Accounts in conformity with accepted accounting standards and past 

practices followed by the Company. 

5. Pursuant to the foregoing, and to the best of the knowledge and belief of the New Board, on the 

basis of representations received from the operating management, and after due enquiry and 

having regard to the matters discussed previously and subject to the various limitations due to the 

extenuating circumstances, it is confirmed that. 

A. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed 

along with proper explanations relating to material departures. Such departures, which are stated 

in the relevant notes to the financial statements, have been done having regard to the prevailing 

conditions under which the Company is operating currently as more fully explained in paragraphs 

1-4 above; 

B. the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the 

Company for that period, having regard to the prevailing conditions under which the Company is 

operating currently; 

C. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities, from the period from which the 

members of the New Board have been appointed. The directors have put in place controls and 

processes in respect of resolution processes I transactions from October 1,2018 to March 31, 

2019; 

D. the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

E. the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company in respect 

of the period from October 0 I, 2018 from which date the members of the New Board have been 

appointed and that such internal financial controls were adequate and were operating effectively 

as at year end, except that due to the prevailing conditions under which the Company is operating 

currently, and having regard to the matters stated; 

F. the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively, commencing fi·om 

the period from October 01, 2018, having regard to the various matters discussed earlier that 

have resulted in the current status of the Company; 
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ANNEXURE I 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES 

Brief Outline of the Company's Corporate Social Responsibilitv Policy and Overview of 
Projects: 

I Background: 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company was approved by the erstwhile 

Board at its Meeting held on December 9, 2014. The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is 

effective from April I, 2014. FY 2019 is the fifth year of operationalization of the Corporate 

Social Responsibility mandate under the Companies Act, 2013. 

A copy ofthe Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is available on the website ofthe Company 

at https:llwww.i!f.iindia.com/investorsl. 

II Composition or tile COI'pofate Social Responsibility Committee: 

Consequent to last reconstitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee on April 3, 

2019, the Committee comprises of: 

Dr. Malini Shankar Chairman 
Mr. Vineet Nayyar Member 
Mr. N Srinivasan Member 

III Average Net Profit orthe Company for the last three financial years: 

In line with the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and the Corporate Social 

Responsibility Rules, 2014, the audited net profits for the last 3 years ended March 31,2018 and 

the average of the same is as given below: 

(Rs in million) 

Pal"ticulars FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2016 
Audited Audited Audited 

Profit Before Tax* 3,864.39 3,586.87 5,092.34 
Less: Dividend received from any other (2,002.97) (4,284.96) (4,950.47) 

companies in India, which are covered 
under and complying with the provisions 
afSection 135 under Companies Act, 20 13 

Less: Any profit arising from any overseas - - -
branch or branches of the Companies, 
whether operated as separate Companies 
or otherwise 
Total 1,861.42 (698.09) 141.87 
Average Profit 435.06 * 

*Net profit computed as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. In view of the re-opening 
of the books of accounts and recasting the financial statements of the Company for the past five 
,financial years, the above mentioned figures are subject to completion qf restatement of 
accounts. 
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IV Prescribed Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure: 

In view of the note given in point no. III above, the amount to be spent would depend on the 
restated financials of the Company for last five years. Accordingly, the New Board is unable 
ascertain the amount to be spent by the Company against CSR activities. 

V Details of Corporate Social Responsibility Spend during the financial veal' : 

The total amount spent during the financial year was Rs. 2.50 mn 

(1) Amount unspent, if any: Presently the Committee is unable to ascertain this amount. 

(2) Manner in which the amount is spent during the Financial year by the erstwhile Management: 

• During the year the Company has donated Rs. 2.50 mn to Nalanda Foundation which 
works in the foHowing areas: 

Promoting Education 
Skill and Livelihood Development 
Sustainability and Environment 
Research and Incubation 

VI Reasons for shortfall in Corporate Socia) Responsibilitv Spend: 

Since your Company has been categorized as "Red" Entity for the Resolution Framework, it is 
not in a position to meet its obligations towards Corporate Social Responsibility activities from 
October 0 1,2018. 

vn Responsibilitv Statement as required to be disclosed in Directors Report: 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company takes on record that 
Rs. 2.50 mn has been spent by the erstwhile management of the Company during April­
September 2018. 

Chandra Shekhar Rajan 

Managing Director 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: December 04, 2019 

Malini Shankar 
Chairman of the CSR Committee 
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ANNEXURE II 

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended from time 
to time, in respect of employees of the Company. 

(J) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of 

the Company 

Sr. Director Ratio of Median 
No Remuneration Remuneration of all 

, of the employees (excluding I 

I 
Director 3 Whole Time 

(Times) Directors) (Rs. In Mn) 

Erstwhile Non-Executive Directors 

1. Mr. Had Sankaran 39.82 1.31 

2. Mr. Ravi Parathasarathy 30.26 1.31 

3. Mr. Arun K Saha 29.86 1.31 

4. Mr. RC Bhargava 3.78 1.31 

5. Mr. SB Mathur 2.40 !.3! 

6. Mr. Michael Pinto 3.09 1.31 

7. Mr. Jaithil1h Rao 2.40 1.31 

8. Ms. Rina Kamath 2.40 1.31 

9. Mr. Harukazu Yamaguchi 0.00 1.31 

10. Mr. Ikuo Nakamura 0.00 1.31 
(Alternate to Mr. H Yamaguchi) 

11. Mr. Hemant Bhargava 0.00 1.31 

12. Mr. Sanjeev Doshi 0.00 1.31 

13. Mr. BK Singal 0.00 1.31 

14. Mr. C Venkat Nageswar 0.00 1.31 

15. Mr. Praveen Kumar Molri 0.00 1.31 

16. Mr. Yoshihiko Miyauchi 0.00 1.31 

17. Mr Kiyoshi Fushitani 0.00 1.31 

18. Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe 0.00 1.31 

(Alternate Director to Mr. K Fushitani) 

Directors Appointed by NCL T 

19. Mr. Uday Kotak 0.00 1.31 

20. Mr. Vineet Nayyar 0.00 1.31 

21. Mr. C.S. Rajan 0.00 1.31 

22. Mr. G.N. Bajpai 0.00 1.31 

23. Mr. G. C. ChatUl"vedi 0.00 1.31 

24. Dr. Malini Shankar 0.00 1.31 

25. Mr. Nand Kishore 0.00 1.31 

26. Mr. Bijay Kumar 1.01 1.3 ! 

27. Mr. N Srinivasan 0.00 1.3 J 
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(2) The percentage increase I decrease -in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, 
Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, ifany, in the Financial Year 

Sr. Name and designation %) increase in 

No. remunel"ation * 
I Mr. Ravi Parthasarathy, Chairman -
2 Mr. Hari Sankaran, Vice Chairman & Managing Director -
3 Mr. Amn K Saha, Joint Managing Director & CEO -
4 Mr. Maharudra M Wagle, Group Chief Financial Officer (23.96) 

5 Ms. Varsha Sawant, Company Secretary 21.63 

6 Mr. Vineet Nayyar, Vice Chairman & Managing Director NA 

7 Mr. Shekhar Prabhudesai, Company Secretary NA 

* The remuneration includes all components paid to respective employees for the financial year, 

including Leave Encashment, Leave Travel Allowance, Performance Related Pay and other 
reimbursements claimed etc. 

(3) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year IS 

42.45% 

(4) As on March 31,2019, the Company has 114 permanent employees on its rolls & 2 off-roll 
employees. 

(5) The average percentage increase in the salaries of employees other than Managerial Personnel 

in FY 2019 is 7.17% and percentage decrease in the Managerial Remuneration was 23,96% 

(6) The remuneration paid is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

(7) In terms of first proviso to Section 136 of the Act, the Report and Accounts are being sent to 

the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees' particulars 
as required pursuant to Rule 5(2) and 5(3) ofthe Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 20l4. The said annexure is available for inspection by the 
Members at the registered office of the Company dUl<ing business hours on working days of the 
Company (other than Saturday) upto the date of the ensuing AGM. If any Member is interested 

in obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company Secretary at the registered 
·office. 

(8) The details of Remuneration and Commission received by the Whole-time Directors & 

Managers of the Company from Subsidimy Companies and/or group companies, is as provided 
below' 

No Name of Director Rs. in million 
(a) Mr Had Sankaran 11.70 
(b) Mr Arun K Saha 29.68 
(c) Mr Vineet Nayyar -
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Note: The remuneration received by the Whole-time Directors/rom the Subsidiary Companies 

and/or group companies includes Sitting Fees. None of the Directors other than mentioned 

above receive any remuneration and commission from the Subsidimy Companies and/or 
Group Companies. 

For and 011 behalfofthe Board of Directors 

Uday Kotak 
Chairman 

Chandra Shekhar Rajan 
Managing Director 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : December 04, 2019 

S8 

Vineet Nayyar 
Executive Vice Chairman 

Bijay Kumar 
Dy. Managing Director 
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ANNEXURE III 

[Pursuant to section 204 (I) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To 
The Members 

Infrastructure Leasing and Financial Sel"Vices Limited 
The IL &FS Financial Centre, Plot No C-22 
G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex 
Mumbai - 400051 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Infrastructure Leasing and Financial Services Limited 
having CIN: L65990MHI987PLC044571 (hereinafter called "the Company"). Secretarial Audit was 

conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"), Mumbai Bench, vide its order dated 01 10.2018 
suspended the existing Board of Directors of Company with immediate effect on the grounds of 
mismanagement and compromise in corporate governance norms and risk management by the 

erstwhile Board of the Company and the affairs of Company being conducted in a manner prejudicial 
to the public interest and the new persons were appointed as Directors in terms of provisions of Section 
242(2) (k) of the Act, to manage the affairs of the Company. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby 
report that in our opinion, the Company has dul"ing the audit period covering the financial year ended 
on 31 5! March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 

subject to the reporting made and the qualification I remarks indicated hereafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended 31 5t March, 2019 according to the provisions 
of: 

Ii) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Depositories Act,1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
(iii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 

(jv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Boal'd 
ofIndia Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 20 II; 
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations,20 15; 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; and 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client. 
(e) Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. 

As per the representations made by the management and relied upon by us, during the period under 
review, provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (,SEBI Act') were not applicable to the Company:-

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009; 
(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 20 14; 
(iii) The Securities and Exchange Board ofTndia (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Redeemable 

Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013; 
(iv) The Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and 
(v) The Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards I & 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above to the extent applicable except foHowing: 

J) The Company has not disclosed following decisions taken in the Board Meeting of erstwhile 
Directors to Stock Exchange and therefore the Company has received Show Cause Notice from 
Securities Exchange Board of India ("SEB!") 

• Raising equity capital by way of rights issue; and 

• Disinvestment plan to reduce the overall debt by Rs. 30,000 crores and recapitalization of 
Group companies to the extent of Rs. 5,000 crores 

2) The erstwhile Director(s) have participated in Board Meeting and Audit Committee meeting 
through electronic mode wherein discussion of approval of the Annual Financial Statement and 
Board's report where taken for which permission of Chairman was not obtained. 

3) The erstwhile Director(s) who were interested in agenda conducted in Board Meetings were present 
during discussions and voting. 

4) The erstwhile Board of Directors of the Company has not approvedfollowing in the Board meeting: 

• Appointment of Scrutinizer 

• Appointment of Agency for evoting 

• Cut Off date of evoting 

• Authority to Chairman or other to receive scrutinizer report 
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5) Prior to October, 2018; the Company has notfiledfollowinge-forms with Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs: 

• Form MGT-14 for Board Resolution passed in Board Meeting dated 29.08.2018 w.r.t. Loan 

taken From State Bank of India, Issue of Securities NCD upto Rs. 50000 Cr, Issue of Shares on 

Rights and Approval of Directors Report as required under Section 117 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

a Form GNL-2forfiling PAS-4 and PAS-5 for Issue ofNCD for series 20I8-1-D. 

6) The Company has not filed following with Stock Exchange / RBI as .applicable: 

o Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit report for Quarter ended December, 2018 and March, 

2019 (L< required under The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-lawsframed 

thereunder; 

• Compliance Certificate for half year ended March 2019 as required under Regulation 7(3) of 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 20 I 5. 

o Unaudited Financial Resultsfor the half year ended 30.09.2018 and 31.03.2019 as required 

under Regulation 52 of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

o Undertaking as required under Regulation 57 of The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

o ALM-I Returnfor the Quarter ended December, 2018 and March, 2019. 

• ALM-2 Returnfor half year ended March, 2019. 

• NDSI-500 _ CRfor the Quarter ended March, 2019. 

• N BS-7 for all Quarters. 

• Returns under Foreign Direct Investment. 

7) The Company has notfiledfollowing with Stock Exchange / RBI within prescribed time: 

• Statement of Investor Grievance for the half year ended 31.03.2019 as required under 
Regulation 13(4) of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

• Branch Info Returns of ail Quarters 

o ALM Returns 

• NDS1_500_CRfor Quarter ended June, September and December, 2018 

• Quarterly Return on Overseas Investment for Quarter ended September and December, 2018 

• External Commercial Borrowings for month ended October, 2018 and December, 20 18 

8) The appointment of Mr. N Sivaraman as Chief Operating Officer of the Company by the Board of 

Directors was not routed through Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

9) The Company has not satisjiedwith the some of the conditions as prescribed under Core Investment 

Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 such as: 

Ii) it holds not less than 90% of its net assets in the form of investment in equity shares, preference 

shares, bond'i, debentures, debt or loans in group companies; 

(ii) Its investments in the equity shares (including instruments compulsorily convertible into equity 

shares within a period not exceeding 10 years from the date of issue) in group companies 
constitute not less than 60% of its net assets as mentioned in clause (i) above; 
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We further repOit that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non~Executive Directors and Independent Directors uptc 30.09.2018, thereafter pursuant 
to Order of National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) dated 01.10.2018, new persons were appointed 
as Directors in terms of provisions of Section 242(2) (k) of the Act and previous Board of Directors 
were suspended. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act, except the 
appointment ofIndependent Director. 

Adequate notice is generally given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, however agenda 
and detailed notes on agenda were not sent in the prescribed time i.e. seven days in advance. A system 
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Tn reference to the compliances of Secreta ria! Standards I & 2 the management has given the following 
representation:-

"In view of the frequent meetings of the New Board, the compliance with applicable Secretarial 
Standards has been met more in spirit than as a process. Accordingly the compliance to Secretarial 
Standards has been followed on a best effOlts basis." 

Majority decision is carried through and as informed, there were no dissenting members' views and 
hence not recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that as per the representations made by the management and relied upon by us, there 

are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of 
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines 
to the best of its efforts in view of the extraordinary situation faced by the Company as mentioned in 
this repOlt during the period under review. 

As per the representations made by the management and relied upon by us. We further report that 
during the audit period, the specific events / actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 
regulations, guidelines, etc., having a major bearing on the Company's affairs are detailed in 
"Annexure A". 

For P. DIWAN & ASSOCIATES 

PRASHANT D1WAN 
PARTNER 

FCS: 1403 CPo 1979 

Date: December 4,2019 
Place: Mumbai 
PR No: 530/2017 
UDlN: FOOl 403A0003554 I 6 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure B and forms an 
integral part of this report. 
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Annexure "A" 

List of Specific Events I Actions having a maio," beal"jng on the Companv1s affairs 

1) The Company has issued and allotted of Debentures on Private Placement. 

2) The Company was unable to service its obligations from September, 2018 in respect of the 
Commercial Papers, Principal and Interest with respect to loans from Banks, Principal and Interest 

with respect to Inter Corporate Deposit, Line of Credit, Letter of Credit, Principal and Interest of loan 
facility, Interest payment of Non-Convertible Debentures, Principal and Interest with respect to 

Deposits etc. 

3) The credit rating of the Company has been downgraded to rating "D". 

4) NCLT vide its order dated 01.l0.2018 has suspended the existing Board of Directors of Company 
with immediate effect and has appointed following new persons as Directors in terms of provisions of 

Section'242(2) (k) of the Act, to manage the affairs of the Company: 

• Mr. Uday Kotak 

• Mr. Vineet Nayyar 

• Mr. G. N. Bajpai (resigned 30.10.2018) 

• Mr. G. C. Chaturvedi 

• Dr. Malini Shankar 

• Mr. Nand Kishore 

• Mr. Bijay Kumar 

• Mr. C S Rajan 

• Mr. N Srinivasan 

5) The new Board is entitled to prepare a resolution plan keeping in mind the interest of the various 

stakeholders. 

6) Pursuant to Order passed by the National Company Law Appellate Tribunal ("NCLA T") on October 

15, 2018, all actions or proceedings by creditors against the Company and its group companies have 
been restricted until further orders. 

7) NCL T vide its order dated 01.01.2019, permitted reopening and recasting of the accounts of the 
Company for the past 5 financial years, under Section 130(1)(ii) of the Companies Act, 2013, by a 

Chartered Accountant. 

8) The Serious Fraud Investigation Office, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi has initiated 
investigation into the affairs ofthe Company under section 212 (I) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

9) The Company has breached its conditions for holding a Certificate of Registration as a CIC issued by 
the Reserve Bank of India as at March 31,2019. 
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10) The Company had made an application to The Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai 

requesting for an extension of time for the purpose of holding Annual General Meeting (AGM) for 
the financial year ended 3 L03.20 19. The said application was subsequently approved by The Registrar 
of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai and the extension to hold AGM was granted for three months 

from the last date of holding AGM. 

For P. D1WAN & ASSOCIATES 

PRASHANT DIWAN 
PARTNER 
FCS: 1403 CP: 1979 

Date: December 4, 2019 

Place: Mumbai 
PR No: 53012017 
UDIN: FOO 1403A000355416 
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To 
The Members 
Infrastructure Leasing and Financial Services Limited 

The IL &FS Financial Centre, Plot No C-22 
G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex 
Mumbai - 400 051 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
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Annexure HB" 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on QUI" audit. 

2. We have foHewed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of Secretarial records. The verification was done 
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We bel ieve that the 

processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 

Accounts of the company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification 
of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor 
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

company. 

For P. DIWAN & ASSOCIATES 

PRASHANT DIWAN 
PARTNER 

FCS: 1403 CP: 1979 

Date: December 4,2019 
Place: Mumbai 

PR No: 53012017 
UDIN: FOOl403A000355416 
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ANNEXURE-IV 

Form MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
As on the Financial Year ended on March 31,2018 

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management & Administration) Rules 2014] 

(I) REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

(a) Company Identification No L65990MH I 987PLC04457 I 

(CIN) 

(b) Registration Date September 03, 1987 

(c) Name of the Company Infrastructure Leasing & Financial Services Limited 

(d) Category I Sub-Category of the Company Limited by Shares 

Company 

(e) Address ofthe Registered Office The IL&FS Financial Centre 

and contact details Plot C-22, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex 

Bandra East, Mumbai 400 051 

Tel: +91 22265333331 Fax : +91 22 2653 3042 

(I) Whether Listed Company Yes* 

(g) Name, Address & Contact Link Intime India Private Limited 

details ofR&T Agent, if any C 101,247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli West, 

Mumbai 400 083 

Tel No: +912249186000 

Fax: +91 2249186060 

* The Company's Equity Shares are not listed on any Stock Exchange, whereas, the Secured 
Non-Convertible Debentures as well as Non-Convertible Redeemable Cumulative 
Preference Shares are listed on ESE. 

(II) PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY: 

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company 

shall be stated: 
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(III) PARTICULARS OF HOLDING. SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

SUBSIDIARIES - DIRECT 

04 lL&FS Airports Limited 

The IL&FS Financial Centre, Plot No. C-22, G-Block, 

I Mumbai 400 051 

Bandra East, Mumbai 400 051 
, 

4th Floor, Dr Gopaldas Bhawan, 28,Barakhamba Road, 

PlaceNewDelhiNewDelhiDL 110001 

US5191 MH20 14NPL252329 
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5'10 

51.00 2(87) 

Subsidiary 

2(87) 

Subsidiary 10000 2(87) 



10 

16 

Bandra~Kurla 

!"i . r 

The IL&FS Financial Centre, Plot No. C~22, G~B!ock, 

I Mumbai 400 OS I 

AS, Navins' Presidium, 103 Nelson Manickam Road, 

I Chennai 600 029 

Technologies Limited) 

The IL&FS Financial Centre, Plot No. C-22, G-Block, 
Bandra-Kurla I Sandra Mumbai 400 051 

IL&FS Township & Urban Assets Limited 
The IL&FS Financial Centre, Plot No. C-22, G-Block, 
Bandra-Kurla I Sandra Mumbai 400 051 

The IL&FS Financial Centre, Plot No. C-22, G-Block, 
Bandra-KU1h Complex, Sandra East, Mumbai 400 051 

Presidium, 103 Nelson Manickam Road, 

i Chennai 600 029 

571 

I U4520 I MH2006PLC 165803 Subsidimy 9002 2187) 

2(87) 

58.29 2(87) 

U701 

I 
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lL&FS House. Raheja Vihar Chandivili, Andheri-East Mumbai-
400072 

The IL&fS Financial Centre, Plot No, C-22, G-Block, 

Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbui 400 05l 

1 
! Centre, Plot No. C-22, G-Block, 

Bandra East, Mumbai 400 051 

Polyhose Towers, 1st Floor, 86 Mount Road, Gundy, 
Chcnnai 600 032 

90MH20 1 Opte21 0582 

U45203JH2008PLCO 13085 
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572 

Subsidiary 10000 2(87) 

Subsidiary 74.00 

53.85 2(87) 


